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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) dams statements that constitute “forward-lookirtgtements”within the meaning of tl
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,aanended. Such statements can be identified hysthef forwar+looking terminology suc
as “believes”, “expects”, “may”, “estimates”, “will", “should”, “plans” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof or other variations ther
or comparable terminology, or by discussions otgtgy. Any such forwarlboking statements are not guarantees of futuréoperance an
may involve significant risks and uncertaintiesd actual results may vary materially from thosecdssed in the forwartboking statements
a result of various factors. These factors inclube effectiveness of managemerdtrategies and decisions, our ability to impleteur
internal growth and acquisition growth strategiegneral economic and business condition speaifiour primary customers, changes
government regulations, our ability to effectiviliegrate businesses we may acquire, new or mddifitutory or regulatory requirements ¢
changing prices and market conditions. This Rem@htifies other factors that could cause suchedéiices. We cannot assure that thes:
all of the factors that could cause actual restdtsyary materially from the forwartboking statements. Factors that could cause ottritmuie
to such differences include, but are not limitedthose discussed in "Risk Factors", and elsewhetbis Report. We assume no obligation
do not intend to update these forwdodking statements. Unless the context otherwigeires, references in this Report to the "Compe
"DXP", “we” or “our” shall mean DXP Enterprises, lo., a Texas corporation, together with its subgiéis




PART |

ITEM 1. Business

Company Overview

DXP was incorporated in Texas in 1996 to be theassor to SEPCO Industries, Inc., founded in 1$0&e our predecessor company
founded, we have primarily been engaged in thenessi of distributing maintenance, repair and opeygMRO) products, equipment ¢
service to industrial customers. The Company iswized into three business segments: Service Geiepply Chain Services and Innova
Pumping Solutions. Sales, Operating income, andrdihancial information for 2010, 2011 and 2018d adentifiable assets at the clos:
such years for our business segments are preseritede 16 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finalm8tatements in Item 8 of this report.

Our total sales have increased from $125 millionl@96 to $1.1 billion in 2012 through a combinatiohinternal growth and busine
acquisitions. At December 31, 2012 we operated ft&@locations in thirtyeight states in the U.S., seven provinces in Careatthone state
Mexico, serving more than 50,000 customers engagedvariety of industrial end markets. We havengresales and profitability by addi
additional products, services, locations and bengmustomer driven experts in maintenance, repairogperating solutions.

Our principal executive office is located at 727RdMmont Houston, Texas 77040, and our telephonebruiis (713) 996+700. Our websi
address on the Internet is www.dxpe.com and emadlg be sent to info@dxpe.com. The reference toamlnsite address does not const
incorporation by reference of the information cam¢éal on the website and such information shouldoeatonsidered part of this report.

Industry Overview

The industrial distribution market is highly fragnted. Based on 2011 sales as reported by InduBlisalibution magazine, we were the 2,
largest distributor of MRO products in the Unitetht®s. Most industrial customers currently purchtmsr industrial supplies throu
numerous local distribution and supply companigsest distributors generally provide the customeéh wepair and maintenance servi
technical support and application expertise witkpeet to one product category. Products typicaklypmurchased by the distributor for re:
directly from the manufacturer and warehoused sttilution facilities of the distributor until sotd the customer. The customer also typic
will purchase an amount of product inventory farriear term anticipated needs and store those @rodtits industrial site until the prodc
are used.

We believe that the distribution system for indiastproducts, as described in the preceding papdigrareates inefficiencies at both
customer and the distributor levels through exdegentory requirements and duplicative cost stmeguTo compete more effectively,
customers and other users of MRO products are regekays to enhance efficiencies and lower MRO ptbdund procurement costs.
response to this customer desire, three primangsrdave emerged in the industrial supply industry:

« Industry ConsolidationIndustrial customers have reduced the number oplmrprelationships they maintain to lower t
purchasing costs, improve inventory managemenyrassonsistently high levels of customer servicd anhance purchasi
power. This focus on fewer suppliers has led tosobidation within the fragmented industrial distriton industry.

« Customized Integrated Servidss industrial customers focus on their core martufawg or other production competencies, |
increasingly are demanding customized integratiervises, consisting of valuedded traditional distribution, supply ch
services, modular equipment and repair and maintanservices




« Single Source, First-Tier DistributiorAs industrial customers continue to address costatoment, there is a trend tow
reducing the number of suppliers and eliminatindtiple tiers of distribution. Therefore, to loweverall costs to the custom
some MRO distributors are expanding their prodosecage to eliminate secc-tier distributors and become*one stop sour(”.

We believe we have increased our competitive adgnthrough our traditional fabrication of integhsystem pump packages and integ
supply programs, which are designed to addressusiomersspecific product and procurement needs. We offeicastomers various optic
for the integration of their supply needs, rangirmm serving as a single source of supply for allspecific lines of products and prod
categories to offering a fully integrated supplckege in which we assume the procurement and maragefunctions, which can inclu
ownership of inventory, at the customer's locat@ar approach to integrated supply allows us tégees program that best fits the needs o
customer. Customers purchasing large quantitiggaduct are able to outsource all or most of thoseds to us. For customers with sm:
supply needs, we are able to combine our traditidistribution capabilities with our broad prodwettegories and advanced ordering systel
allow the customer to engage in one-stop sourcitigowt the commitment required under an integratgaply contract.

Business Segments

The Company is organized into three business seigm8arvice Centers, Supply Chain Services (SC8)lanovative Pumping Solutio
(IPS). Our segments provide management with a cehgnsive financial view of our key businesses. 3égments enable the alignmen
strategies and objectives and provide a framewarkihely and rational allocation of resources witbur businesses.

Service Centers

The Service Centers are engaged in providing MR&@lyxts, equipment and integrated services, inctutichnical expertise and logis
capabilities, to industrial customers with the ipito provide same day delivery. We offer our cusérs a single source of supply or
efficient and competitive basis by being a firgttilistributor that can purchase products direfttdyn manufacturers. As a firsier distributor
we are able to reduce our customers' costs andoirapefficiencies in the supply chain. We also pdeviservices such as field sa
supervision, ifhouse and field repair and predictive maintenaWée offer a wide range of industrial MRO productgyui@ment and integrat
services through a continuum of customized andiefit MRO solutions.

Generally our Service Centers segment does not ertelongterm contracts with our customers requiring thempuechase our products.
majority of our Service Center segment sales areeffrom customer purchase orders. Sales arethjireolicited from customers by our s¢
force. DXP Service Centers are stocked and stafifdknowledgeable sales associates and backedcdeytsalized customer service tear
experienced industry professionals. At Decembe2812, our Service Centengfoducts and services were distributed from 158iceicenter
and 7 distribution centers.

DXP Service Centers provide a wide range of MRQdpots in the rotating equipment, bearing, powensmaission, hose, fluid power, me
working, industrial supply and safety product aad/&e categories. We currently serve as a fiestelistributor of more than 1,000,000 item
which more than 60,000 are stock keeping units (§Kfdr use primarily by customers engaged in tHeaod gas, food and bevers
petrochemical, transportation and other generaustréal industries. Other industries served by @&earvice Centers include minii
construction, chemical, municipal, agriculture gndp and paper.

The Service Centers segment’s long-lived assettaated in both the United States and Canada. dopately 7.4% of the Service Center’
segment revenues were in Canada and the remairderiktually all in the U.S.

At December 31, 2012, the Service Centers segnaghapproximately 2,113 full-time employees.




Supply Chain Services

DXP’s Supply Chain Services segment manages gladrof its customerssupply chains including procurement and inventognagemenr
The Supply Chain Services segment enters into terg-contracts with its customers that can be ditten little or no notice under cert
circumstances. Supply Chain Services provideslya uitsourced MRO solution including: inventory mpization and management; store rc
management; transaction consolidation and conteidor oversight and procurement cost optimizatfmoductivity improvement service
and customized reporting. Our mission is to help @stomers become more competitive by reducing thdirect material costs and or
cycle time by increasing productivity and by cregtenterprise-wide inventory and procurement Vigjband control.

DXP has developed assessment tools and mastetepigrtates aimed at taking cost out of supply clpagtesses, streamlining operations
boosting productivity. This mulfiaceted approach allows us to manage the entinenehdor maximum efficiency and optimal control, iat
ultimately provides our customers with a low-cagtision.
DXP takes a consultative approach to determinestitemgths and opportunities for improvement withiocustomes indirect supply chain. Tt
assessment determines if and how we can best dimeaaperations, drive value within the procuremenicess, and increase contra
storeroom management.
Decades of supply chain inventory management esipegi and comprehensive research, as well as autfformderstanding of our customers
businesses and industries have allowed us to desamdardized programs that are flexible enougthecdfully adaptable to address
customers’ unique supply chain challenges. Thes®lardized programs include:

« SmartAgreement, a planned, pro-active procuren@utisn for MRO categories leveraging DXP’s locarice Centers.

« SmartBuy, DXP’s on-site or centralized MRO procueatsolution.

« SmartSourcéM, DXP’s on-site procurement and storeroom managemeBXP personnel.

» SmartStore, DXP’s customized e-Catalog solution.

« SmartVend, DXP’s industrial dispensing solutionallows for inventorylevel optimization, user accountability and itenags reductio
by 2(-40% anc

« SmartServ, DXP integrated service pump solution. It providesaarefficient way to manage the entire life cycdlgpomping systen
and rotating equipmer

DXP’s SmartSolutions programs help customers to cudyatocosts, improve supply chain efficiencies abthim expert technical suppc
DXP represents manufacturers of up to 90% of adl tiaintenance, repair and operating products ofcostomers. Unlike many ott
distributors who buy products from second-tier sesr DXP takes customers to the source of the ptedey need.

At December 31, 2012, the Supply Chain Servicemseg operated supply chain installations in sixtg-¢61) of our customers’ facilities.

At December 31, 2012, all of the Supply Chain Seysisegment’s lonlived assets are located in the U.S. and all of2264les wel
recognized in the U.S.

At December 31, 2012, the Supply Chain Servicemsag had approximately 259 full-time employees.

Innovative Pumping Solutions

DXP’s Innovative Pumping Solutions@®gment provides fabrication and technical desigmeet the capital equipment needs of our g
customer base. DXB’Innovative Pumping Solutions provides a singlars® for engineering, systems design and fabricatib custor
integrated pump packages.




Generally we do not enter into logrm contracts with our customers requiring therpurchase our pumps. A majority of our sales aresel
from customer purchase orders. Sales are direglilyited from new customers by our sales force.

DXP’s engineering staff can design a complete eungtamp package to meet our customersject specifications. Drafting programs suc
Solidworks® and AutoCAD@allow our engineering team to verify the design &but of packages with our customers prior to steat o
fabrication. Finite Elemental Analysis programsltsas Cosmos Professionat®e used to design the package to meet all nornthfwture
loads and forces. This process helps maximize thgppackages’ life and minimizes any impact togheironment.

With over 100 years of fabrication experience, D@3 acquired the technical expertise to ensureotirapumps and pump packages are
to meet the highest standards. DXP utilizes manurfac authorized equipment and manufacturer cedifiersonnel. Pump packages rec
MRO and original equipment manufacturer®EM) equipment such as pumps, motors, valves, andumable products, such as wel
supplies. DXP leverages its MRO product inventoaed breadth of authorized products to lower thal fmost and maintain the quality of
pump package.

DXP’s fabrication facilities provide convenient tectalisupport and pump repair services. The facilitiestain state of the art equipmen
provide the technical services our customers regoeluding:

« Structural welding

« Pipe welding

« Custom skid assembly

« Custom coatings

« Hydrostatic pressure testing
« Mechanical string testing

Examples of our innovative pump packages include:

» Diesel and electric driven firewater packages

« Pipeline booster packages

- Potable water packages

« Pigging pump packages

« Lease Automatic Custody Transfer charge units

« Chemical injection pump packages wash down units
« Seawater lift pumps

« Jockey pumps

« Condensate pump packages

« Cooling water skids

« Seawater/produced water injection packages

« Variety of packages to meet common industry speatifins such as API, ANSI and NFPA

At December 31, 2012, the Innovative Pumping Sohgisegment operated out of eight facilities lotdte Texas, Arizona, Louisiar
Colorado and Nebraska.

All of the Innovative Pumping Solutions segmentiaddived assets are located in the U. S. and virtualllyf 2012 sales were recognizes
the U.S.

At December 31, 2012, the Innovative Pumping Sohgisegment had approximately 207 full-time empdsye

Products

Most industrial customers currently purchase tMRO supplies through local or national distributicompanies that are focused on sing
unique product categories. As a fittr distributor, our network of service and distriion centers stock more than 60,000 SKUs andige
customers with access to more than 1,000,000 it&nhsen our breadth of product and our industriatribution customers focus arot
specific product categories we have become custadimiegn experts in five key product categories.sdish, our three business segment:
supported by these five key product categoriesuding, rotating equipment, bearings & power trarssion, industrial supplies, metal work
and safety products & services. Each business sggtaiors its inventory and leverages product etpéo meet the needs of its Ic
customers.




Key product categories that we offer include:

« Rotating Equipment . Our rotating equipment products include a fulkliof centrifugal pumps for transfer and processice
applications, such as petrochemicals, refining @udie oil production; rotary gear pumps for low- teedium pressure serv
applications, such as pumping lubricating oils athler viscous liquids; plunger and piston pumps Hyhpressure servit
applications such as disposal of produced wateicamnde oil pipeline service; and aperated diaphragm pumps. We also prc
a large variety of pump accessori

« Bearings & Power Transmission. Our bearing products include several types of mexiand unmounted bearings for a vari
of applications. The power transmission productsdigtribute include speed reducers, flexibipling drives, chain drive
sprockets, gears, conveyors, clutches, brakes asab|

« Industrial Supplies . We offer a broad range of industrial supplieghsas abrasives, tapes and adhesive productsngeat
lubricants, fasteners, hand tools, janitorial piidupneumatic tools, welding supplies and wel@iggipment

« Metal Working . Our metal working products include a broad raafeutting tools, abrasives, coolants, gauges, strél tools
and machine shop supplit

« Safety Products & Services. We provide safety services including hydrogeriidal(H , S) gas protection and safety, special

and standby fire protection, safety supervisioaining, monitoring, equipment rental and consulti®gr safety services inclu
safety supervision, medic services, safety auditstrument repair and calibration, training, moriitg, equipment rental a
consulting. Additionally, we sell safety producteluding eye and face protection, first aid, hanotgction, hazardous matel
handling, instrumentation and respiratory protetpooducts

We acquire our products through numerous OEMs. Weaathorized to distribute certain manufactungrstiucts only in specific geograp
areas. All of our oral or written distribution aatizations are subject to cancellation by the maciwfrer, some upon little or no notice. For
last three fiscal years, no manufacturer providedipcts that accounted for 10% or more of our raesnWe believe that alternative source
supply could be obtained in a timely manner if distribution authorization were canceled. Accordimgve do not believe that the loss of
one distribution authorization would have a matexdverse effect on our business, financial coaditir results of operations.

The Company has operations in the United Statésndrica, Canada and Mexico. Information regardingricial data by geographic areg
set forth in Item 8 of this Annual Report on ForBiH. See Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Finarsiatements under Item 8.

Recent Acquisitions
A key component of our growth strategy includeetihg acquisitions of businesses with complemgrvardesirable product lines, locatit

or customers. Since 2004, we have completed 25isitigns across our three business segments. Bsl@avsummary of recent acquisitit
since the end of 2007.

On January 31, 2008, DXP completed the acquisdfaine business of Rocky Mountain Supply. DXP ageplithis business to expand DXP’
presence in Colorado. DXP paid $3.9 million in casd $0.7 million in promissory notes.
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On August 28, 2008, DXP completed the acquisitibRel, LLC. DXP acquired this business to strengtbXP’s expertise in the distributi
of fasteners. DXP paid $66.4 million in cash fastbusiness.

On December 1, 2008, DXP completed the acquisitfoRalcon Pump. DXP acquired this business to gttean DXPs pump offering in tF
Rocky Mountain area. DXP paid $3.1 million in ca$h,8 million in promissory notes and $0.2 milliomcash based upon earnings afte
acquisition date.

On April 1, 2010, DXP acquired substantially ak thssets of Quadna, Inc. (“Quadndme purchase price of approximately $25.0 millioe!
of $3.0 million of acquired cash) consisted of $dillion paid in cash, $10 million in the form of weertible promissory notes bearing inte
at a rate of 10% and approximately $4.0 millionthe form of 343,337 shares of DXP common stock. $h# million cash portion of tl
purchase price was funded by borrowings under BXisting credit facility. DXP completed this aijtion to expand its pump busines:
the Western U.S. On April 9, 2010, $4.5 million mqmipal amount of the convertible promissory not@eng with accrued interest, w
converted into 376,417 shares of DXRommon stock. On August 18, 2010, $3.7 milliortheff convertible promissory notes were paic
using funds obtained from DX®'credit facility and $1.8 million of the convetglpromissory notes were converted to 117,374 shafr®XF
common stock.

On November 30, 2010, DXP acquired substantiallypfathe assets of D&F Distributors, Inc. (“D&F"Yhe purchase price of $13.4 mill
consisted of approximately $7.4 million paid inttagpproximately $2.9 million in the form of prorsé@y notes bearing interest at a rate of
and approximately $3.1 million in the form of 15833shares of DXP common stock. The cash portioth@fpurchase price was fundec
borrowings under DXR existing credit facility. DXP completed this aggition to expand its pump business in Indiana, tideky, Tennesst
and Ohio.

On October 10, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallyo&lthe assets of Kenneth Crosby ("KC"). DXP acedithis business to expand DX
geographic presence in the eastern U.S. and stem@XP's metal working and supply chain servidésrings. DXP paid approximately $1!
million for KC, which was borrowed under our exisficredit facility.

On December 30, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallpfaihe assets of C.W. Rod Tool Company ("CW Ro®XP acquired this business
strengthen DXP's metal working offering in Texad aouisiana. DXP paid approximately $1.1 million@XP's common stock (35,714 sha
and approximately $42 million in cash for CW Rodhieh was borrowed during 2011 and 2012 under oistiag credit facility.

On January 31, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallypfaithe assets of Mid-Continent Safety ("M@ibntinent”). DXP acquired this busines:
expand DXP's geographic presence in the Midwedie®n and strengthen DXP's safety products offefdXP paid approximately $3.7 milli
for Mid-Continent, which was borrowed under ourstixig credit facility.

On February 29, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of Pump & Power Equipment, Incufip & Power"). DXP acquired tt
business to expand DXP's geographic presence iMithwestern U.S. and strengthen DXP's municipal pproducts and services offeri
DXP paid approximately $1.9 million for Pump & Pawehich was borrowed under our existing creditlfaci

On April 2, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Aledtoc. ("Aledco") and Force Engineered Products, [fiEorce”). Aledco and Force a
focused on servicing customers in the oil and geder and waste water treatment, pharmaceuticairahdbtrial markets. DXP acquired t
business to establish a presence within the Marx&hale, as well as the Northeast United Stathssirial rotating equipment market. D
paid approximately $8.1 million for Aledco and Fenzhich was borrowed under our existing creditlfigci

On May 1, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition oflustrial Paramedic Services through its wholly osvrsaibsidiary, DXP Cana
Enterprises Ltd. Industrial Paramedic Servicespsaaider of industrial medical and safety servite@dustrial customers operating in ren
locations and large facilities in western CanaddPDacquired this business to expand DXP's geogramt@isence into Canada and to ex|
our safety services offering. Industrial Paramegkicvices is headquartered in Calgary, Alberta getaies out of three locations in Calg
Nisku and Dawson Creek. The $25.3 million purchasee was financed with $20.7 million of borrowingsder DXP's existing credit facili
$2.5 million of promissory notes bearing a 5% iagtrate and 19,685 shares of DXP common stock.
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On May 31, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition afs#h and Denholm Industrial Sales Alberta, Inc I1). ADI is a distributor @
industrial pumps and process equipment. DXP acduies business to expand our presence in pummhgiens in Western Canada. D
Canada Enterprises Ltd., acquired all of the ontitey common shares of ADI for $2.7 million whickasvborrowed under our existing facility.

On July 11, 2012, DXP completed the acquisitio8E Integrated Ltd. (iISE"). DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd. acquired athefoutstandin
common shares of HSE by way of a plan of arrangémeder theBusiness Corporations A¢Alberta) (the "Arrangement"). Pursuant to
Arrangement, HSE shareholders received CDN $1.8@ash per each common share of HSE held. The tmabkaction value w
approximately $85 million, including approximatebd million in debt and approximately $3 million iransaction costs. The purchase
was financed with borrowings under DXPhew $325 million credit facility. DXP acquired HSo expand our industrial health and s
services offering in Canada and the United States.

On October 1, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallyoalthe assets of Jerzy Supply, Inc. (“JerzypXP acquired this business in the Soutl
U.S. to strengthen DXP's industrial and hydrautisénoffering. DXP paid approximately $5.3 milliaor flerzy which was borrowed under
existing credit facility.

Competition

Our business is highly competitive. In the Servi@nters segment we compete with a variety of im@stupply distributors, many of whi
may have greater financial and other resources Weamo. Many of our competitors are small entegwiselling to customers in a limi
geographic area. We also compete with catalogiloligtrs, large warehouse stores and, to a lesgentexnanufacturers. While many of
competitors offer traditional distribution of sorakthe product groupings that we offer, we areawéare of any major competitor that offers
a noneatalog basis a variety of products and servicebraad as our offering. Further, while certain tagadistributors provide prodt
offerings as broad as ours, these competitors toffer the product application, technical expertand after-thsale services that we provi
In the Supply Chain Services segment we compete laiger distributors that provide integrated sypmlograms and outsourcing servit
some of which might be able to supply their produot a more efficient and cosftfective manner than we can provide. In the Intive
Pumping Solutions segment we compete against @&tyaof manufacturers, distributors and fabricatangny of which may have gree
financial and other resources than we do. We gépe@mpete on service and price in all of our segts.

Insurance

We maintain liability and other insurance that vetidwve to be customary and generally consistert imidustry practice. We retain a portior
the risk for medical claims, general liability, Wer's compensation and property losses. The variousatibtes of our insurance polic
generally do not exceed $250,000 per occurrencerelére also certain risks for which we do not ne@@minsurance. There can be no assui
that such insurance will be adequate for the riskslved, that coverage limits will not be exceedmdthat such insurance will apply to
liabilities. The occurrence of an adverse claimextess of the coverage limits that we maintain d¢dwdve a material adverse effect on
financial condition and results of operations. Phemiums for insurance have increased significamilyr the past three years. This trend ¢
continue. Additionally, we are partially self-ingdr for our group health plan, workercompensation, auto liability and general liag
insurance. The cost of claims for the group healtih has increased over the past three yearstrenid is expected to continue.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo our business and operations, and varioaftthand safety regulations as establishe
the Occupational Safety and Health Administratiod €anadian Occupational Health and Safety.
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Certain of our operations are subject to fedetatesand local laws and regulations as well asipoisd regulations controlling the discharge
materials into or otherwise relating to the pratatiof the environment. Although we believe thatheye adequate procedures to comply
applicable discharge and other environmental léesrisks of accidental contamination or injurynfréthe discharge of controlled or hazarc
materials and chemicals cannot be eliminated caeiplein the event of such a discharge, we coulthddd liable for any damages that re:
and any such liability could have a material adeerffect on us. We are not currently aware of atwason or condition that we believe
likely to have a material adverse effect on ouultsf operations or financial condition.

Employees
At December 31, 2012, DXP had approximately 2,8illFtftme employees. We believe that we maintain pasitalationships with all of o
employees. Less than one percent (1%) of our empbgre unionized.

Background of Executive Officers

The following is a list of DXPs executive officers, their age, positions, aneéscdption of their business experience as of Marth2013. Al
of our executive officers hold office at the pleasaf DXP’s Board of Directors.

NAME POSITION AGE

David R. Little Chairman of the Board, President and 61
Chief Executive Office

Mac McConnell Senior Vice President/Finance, Chief 59
Financial Officer and Secreta

David C. Vinson  Senior Vice President/Innovative Pumpi 62

Solutions

John J. Jeffery Senior Vice President/Supply Chain 45
Services & Marketing

Todd Hamlin Senior Vice President/Service Cent 41

Kent Yee Senior Vice President/Corporate 37
Developmen

Wayne Crane Senior Vice President/Information 51
Technology

Gary Messersmit  Senior Vice President/General Cour 64

David R. Little. Mr. Little has served as Chairman of the Boamgsklent and Chief Executive Officer of DXP sint®arganization in 19¢
and also has held these positions with SEPCO Iridastnc., predecessor to the Company (“SEPCSMice he acquired a controlling inte
in SEPCO in 1986. Mr. Little has been employed IBPSO since 1975 in various capacities, includingffSiccountant, Controller, Vic
President/Finance and President. Mr. Little givas Board insight and idepth knowledge of our industry and our specifieragions an
strategies. He also provides leadership skillslarmiviedge of our local community and business emvitent, which he has gained througt
long career with DXP and its predecessor companies.

Mac McConnell.Mr. McConnell was elected Senior Vice PresidentdRce and Chief Financial Officer in September 208@m Februar
1998 until September 2000, Mr. McConnell servedSasior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer aaddirector of Transportati
Components, Inc., a NYSEsted distributor of truck parts. From Decembe®290 February 1998, he served as Chief Financitited of
Sterling Electronics Corporation, a NY3iEted electronics parts distributor, which was w@ced by Marshall Industries, Inc. in 1998. Fi
1990 to 1992, Mr. McConnell was Vice President-Rize of Interpak Holdings, Inc., a publidsaded company involved in packaging
warehousing thermoplastic resins. From 1976 to 1B8G&erved in various capacities, including aaréngr, with Ernst & Young LLP.

David C. VinsonMr. Vinson was elected Senior Vice President/IntimgaPumping Solutions in January 2006. He sen&d®anior Vic
President/Operations of DXP from October 2000 tocddeber 2005. From 1996 until October 2000, Mr. ¥msserved as Vi
President/Traffic, Logistics and Inventory. Mr. ¥om has served in various capacities with DXP sirisemployment in 1981.

John J. Jeffen. Mr. Jeffery was elected Senior Vice PresidenSopply Chain Services and Marketing in June 2010. Xffery joined th
Company 1991 when DXP acquired T. L. Walker. He bassed in various capacities with DXP since hisplyment, including sals
representative, branch and area management, Vesdent of Marketing, Sales Vice President for @&éf Coast Region and Senior V
President of Sales & Marketing.
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Todd Hamlin. Mr. Hamlin was elected Senior Vice President offDService Centers in June of 2010. Mr. Hamlin jditree Company in 19¢
From February 2006 until June 2010 he served a®oRa&lgvice President of the Gulf Coast Region. Prioserving as Regional Vice Presic
of the Gulf Coast Region he served in various ciipagcincluding application engineer, product spkst and sales representative. From /£
2005 through February 2006, Mr. Hamlin worked aal@s manager for the UPS Supply Chain Servicasiaivof United Parcel Service, |i
He holds a Bachelors of Science in Industrial Obstion from Texas A&M University and a Master inisiribution from Texas A&N
University. Mr. Hamlin serves on the Advisory Bodiod Texas A&M’s Master in Distribution degree prag.

Kent Yee. Mr. Yee currently serves as Senior Vice Presidentporate Development and leads DXP's mergersaandisitions, busine
integration and internal strategic project actasti During March 2011, Mr. Yee joined DXP from Steps Inc.'s Industrial Distribution &
Services team where he served in various posiaodsmost recently as Vice President from Augusb200February 2011. Prior to Stepht
Mr. Yee was a member of The Home DepoBtrategic Business Development Group with a pgsinflacus on acquisition activity for +
Supply. Mr. Yee was also an Associate in the Al@yadicated Finance Group at JPMorgan Chase. Keckacuted over 34 transacti
including more than $885 million in M&A and $2.8lllmn in financing transactions primarily for cham@f control deals and numer
industrial and distribution acquisition and salsigsments. He holds a Bachelors of Arts in UrbaanPRing from Morehouse College anc
MBA from Harvard University Graduate School of Busss.

Wayne Crane Wayne Crane currently serves as Senior Vice Presiled Chief Information Officer and leads DXP'®mmation technolog
and telecommunications activities. Joining DXP ing@ist 2011, Mr. Crane offers 25 years experiencectiing business and technoli
transformation for Fortune 1000 corporations arttkotechnology based compani®sior to DXP, Mr. Crane served as Chief Informa
Officer for CDS Global, a global technology solutsoprovider and wholly owned subsidiary of the le&orporation. Until 2008, Mr. Cra
served as CIO for the Attachmate/NetlQ, a publcatided systems and security management softveem@any, where he was responsible
all technology efforts, including several businessl product lines. Previously, Mr. Crane managedbajltechnology efforts for BJ Servit
Company, a publicly traded oilfield services compa¥ir. Crane holds a Master of Computer Scienceakegnd an MBA.

Gary MessersmithMr. Messersmith serves as Senior Vice Presidethi@General Counsel of DXP Enterprises, Inc. Mr. $éesmith joined
DXP on January 1, 2013 after practicing law for enbran 38 years with Looper Reed & McGraw and godhat with Fouts & Moore. Durin
this period, Mr. Messersmith’s practice includedpmate, real estate and oil and gas matters. BE&88 until 2001, Gary served as Managing
Partner of Fouts & Moore. Since 1995, Gary hasasgmted DXP in the acquisition of more than 27 camgs and he has provided legal
services to DXP in various other areas. Gary obthins Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance frodiaha University in 1971 and his J.D.
from South Texas School of Law in 1975.

All officers of DXP hold office until the regular eeting of the board of directors following the Aahieeting of Shareholders or until tt
respective successors are duly elected and qubdifi¢heir earlier resignation or removal.

Available Informatior

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly RepomsForm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK8and amendments to those reports file
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of Sleeurities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (thxel&nge Act”),are available free

charge through our Internet website ( www.dxpe.goas soon as reasonably practicable after we eldctlly file such material with,

furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Comrissi
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in DXP involves risk. In deciding whetherinvest in DXP, you should carefully consideg following risk factors. Any of these ri
factors could have a significant or material adeegfect on our businesses, results of operatimescial condition or liquidity. They cou
also cause significant fluctuations and volatilitythe trading price of our securities. Readersuhmot consider any descriptions of tF
factors to be a complete set of all potential ridkat could affect DXP. These factors should beswered carefully together with the ot
information contained in this report and the ottegrorts and materials filed by us with the Secesitind Exchange Commission. Further, r
of these risks are interrelated and could occueusinilar business and economic conditions, aadtiturrence of certain of them may in-
cause the emergence or exacerbate the effect @fsotBuch a combination could materially incre&geseverity of the impact of these risk
our results of operations, liquidity and finanaahdition.

Decreased capital expenditures in the energy ingliustn adversely impact our custon” demand for our products and services.

A significant portion of our revenue depends upoa level of capital and operating expenditureshim @il and natural gas industry, includ
capital expenditures in connection with the upsiremidstream, and downstream phases in the enedgystry. Therefore, a significant decl
in oil or natural gas prices could lead to a desda our customers’ capital and other expenditanescould adversely affect our revenues.

Demand for our products could decrease if the martufers of those products sell them directly td asers

Typically, MRO products have been purchased thraigtiibutors and not directly from the manufactaref those products. If customers w
to purchase our products directly from manufacsjrer if manufacturers sought to increase thewr&ffto sell directly to end users, we cc
experience a significant decrease in sales andngatn

Changes in our customer and product mix, or advetsgnges to the cost of goods we sell, could causegross margin percentage
fluctuate, or decrease and we may not be able tataia historical margins

Changes in our customer mix have resulted from iggabgc expansion, daily selling activities withiarcent geographic markets, and targ
selling activities to new customers. Changes in pduct mix have resulted from marketing actiti® existing customers and ne
communicated to us from existing and prospectiv&amers. There can be no assurance that we widbl®to maintain our historical gr
margins. In addition, we may also be subject togimcreases from vendors that we may not be alpads along to our customers.

We rely upon third-party transportatiogoroviders for our merchandise shipments and argesuilio increased shipping costs as well as
potential inability of outthird-party transportation providers to deliver piocts on a timely basis.

We rely upon independent third-party transportaficoviders for our merchandise shipments, includihipments to and from all of our sen
centers. Our utilization of these delivery servié@sshipments is subject to risks, including ireges in fuel prices, labor availability, la
strikes and inclement weather, which may impadtippgng companys ability to provide delivery services that adegliameet our shippir
needs. If we change the shipping companies wewsesould face logistical difficulties that couldvesely affect deliveries and we wo
incur costs and expend resources in connectionswuith change. In addition, we may not be able taiolfavorable terms as we have with
current third-party transportation providers.

Adverse weather events or natural disasters coatghtively disrupt our operation

Certain areas in which we operate are susceptibdalterse weather conditions or natural disasseich as hurricanes, tornadoes, floods
earthquakes. These events can disrupt our opesatiesult in damage to our properties and neggtizféct the local economies in which
operate. Additionally, we may experience commuicatlisruptions with our customers, vendors andleyges.

13




We cannot predict whether or to what extent dantagised by these events will affect our operatiorte@economies in regions where we
operate. These adverse events could result inpdisruof our purchasing or distribution capabiltiénterruption of our business that exceeds
our insurance coverage, our inability to collecnfrcustomers and increased operating costs. Oindsssor results of operations may be
adversely affected by these and other negativetsftd#f these events.

The loss of or the failure to attract and retairykmersonnel could adversely impact our resultspafrations.

The loss of the services of any of the executiicerfs of the Company could have a material advefsect on our financial condition a
results of operations. In addition, our abilitygww successfully will be dependent upon our abilit attract and retain qualified manager
and technical and operational personnel. The faitarattract and retain such persons could mateadversely affect our financial conditi
and results of operations.

The loss of any key supplier could adversely affed®’s sales and profitability.

We have distribution rights for certain productenand depend on these distribution rights forbstaumtial portion of our business. Many
these distribution rights are pursuant to contrédwis are subject to cancellation upon little orpmi@r notice. Although we believe that we cc
obtain alternate distribution rights in the evehsuach a cancellation, the termination or limitatiny any key supplier of its relationship with
Company could result in a temporary disruption of business and, in turn, could adversely affect results of operations and finan
condition.

We are subject to various government regulations.

We are subject to laws and regulations in everngdiotion where we operate. Compliance with lawd eggulations increase our cost of d¢
business. We are subject to a variety of laws agdlations, including without limitation import amcport requirements, the Foreign Cor
Practices Act, tax laws (including U.S. taxes onfoueign subsidiaries), data privacy requiremelatsor laws and anttempetition regulation
We are also subject to audits and inquiries indttBnary course of business. Changes to the legakegulatory environments could incre
the cost of doing business, and such costs magaserin the future as a result of changes in fa@seand regulations or in their interpretat
Although we have implemented policies and procesludesigned to comply with laws and regulationsyrehean be no assurance
employees, contractors or agents will not violatehslaws and regulations. Any such violations canttividually or in the aggregate materi:
adversely affect our financial condition or resat®perations.

We are subject to environmental, health and sdéetg and regulations.

We are subject to federal, state, local, foreigth provincial environmental, health and safety lamd regulations. Fines and penalties me
imposed for noreompliance with applicable environmental, healtd aafety requirements and the failure to have aotoply with the terrr
and conditions of required permits. The failureusyto comply with applicable environmental, healtid safety requirements could resu
fines, penalties, enforcement actions, third paldyms for property damage and personal injuryuiregnents to clean up property or to pay
the costs of cleanup, or regulatory or judicialesedrequiring corrective measures.

A general slowdown in the economy could negativepact DXFs sales growth.

Economic and industry trends affect DXRjusiness. Demand for our products is subjectém@mic trends affecting our customers anc
industries in which they compete in particular. Manf these industries, such as the oil and gassimguare subject to volatility while othe
such as the petrochemical industry, are cyclicdl materially affected by changes in the economyaAssult, demand for our products ct
be adversely impacted by changes in the markedsrofustomers. We traditionally do not enter imtng-term contracts with our customers.

14




Risks Associated With Conducting Business in For€iguntries

We conduct a meaningful amount of business outsfdiéne United States of America. We could be addgraffected by economic, leg
political and regulatory developments in countrtat we conduct business in. We have meaningfutatipes in Canada in which 1
functional currency is denominated in CanadianaiellAs the value of currencies in foreign coustirewhich we have operations increas
decrease related to the U.S. dollar, the saleseresgs, profits, losses assets and liabilities af foreign operations, as reported in
consolidated financial statements, increase oredeer, accordingly.

The trading price of our common stock may be Jelati

The market price of our common stock could be sulifewide fluctuations in response to, among othiegs, the risk factors described in
and other periodic reports, and other factors beyamir control, such as fluctuations in the valuatidd companies perceived by investors t
comparable to us. Furthermore, the stock markete baperienced price and volume fluctuations tleatehaffected and continue to affect
market prices of equity securities of many compsniehese fluctuations often have been unrelatedigproportionate to the operat
performance of those companies. These broad markkindustry fluctuations, as well as general eodoppolitical, and market conditiot
such as recessions, interest rate changes oratitamal currency fluctuations, may negatively afffée market price of our common stock
the past, many companies that have experiencetlliplim the market price of their stock have besrbject to securities class action litigat
We may be the target of this type of litigationthre future. Securities litigation against us cotdgult in substantial costs and divert
management's attention from other business conoshish could adversely affect our business.

Our future results will be impacted by our abilityimplement our internal growth strategy.

Our future results will depend in part on our swscen implementing our internal growth strategy,ichhincludes expanding our exist
geographic areas, selling additional products tstiexgy customers and adding new customers. Ouityatnl implement this strategy will depe
on our success in selling more products and seyviceexisting customers, acquiring new customeirsndh qualified sales persons, ¢
marketing integrated forms of supply managemenh siscthose being pursued by us through our Smat&8¥program. Although we intel
to increase sales and product offerings to existiugjomers, there can be no assurance that weevdliccessful in these efforts. Addition:
we sell products and services in very competitiarkats. We could experience a material adverseteffethe extent that our competitors
successful in reducing our customegpsirchases of products and services from us. Cotigretiould also cause us to lower our prices, W
could reduce our margins and profitability. Condation in our industry could heighten the impadtsampetition on our business and res
of operations discussed above. The fact that weaddraditionally enter into longerm contracts with our suppliers or customers iprayide
opportunities for our competitors.

We are subject to personal injury and product lipiclaims involving allegedly defective products.

A variety of products we distribute are used ingotially hazardous applications that can resuttarsonal injury and product liability claims
catastrophic occurrence at a location where thdymts we distribute are used may result in us bearged as a defendant in lawsuits asse
potentially large claims, even though we did nohofacture the products, and applicable law mayeend liable for damages without reg
to negligence or fault.

Risks Associated With Acquisition Strat

Our future results will depend in part on our apilio successfully implement our acquisition stggteWe may not be able to consumn
acquisitions at rates similar to the past, whichld@dversely impact our growth rate and stockeprithis strategy includes taking advantag
a consolidation trend in the industry and effectieguisitions of businesses with complementaryesirdble product lines, strategic distribu
locations, attractive customer bases or manufactetationships. Promising acquisitions are diffido identify and complete for a numbel
reasons, including high valuations, competition agh@rospective buyers, the need for regulatorylafing antitrust) approvals and
availability of affordable funding in the capitalamkets. In addition, competition for acquisitiomsdur business areas is significant and
result in higher purchase prices.
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Changes in accounting or regulatory requirementsstability in the credit markets could also adedy impact our ability to consumm
acquisitions. In addition, acquisitions involve ammber of special risks, including possible advef$ects on our operating results, diversio
managemens attention, failure to retain key personnel of dlequired business, difficulties in integrating @i®ns, technologies, services
personnel of acquired companies, potential lossustomers of acquired companies, preserving businelationships of the acquil
companies, risks associated with unanticipated tevenliabilities, and expenses associated witholabe inventory of an acquired busin
some or all of which could have a material advef$ect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. Our ability to grow al
above our historic rates depends in part upon tilityato identify and successfully acquire andeigtate companies and businesst
appropriate prices and realize anticipated coshgay

Risks Related to Acquisition Financi

We may need to finance acquisitions by using shaff€mmon Stock for a portion or all of the corsation to be paid. In the event that
Common Stock does not maintain a sufficient maviaéde, or potential acquisition candidates aremilse unwilling to accept Common St
as part of the consideration for the sale of thesinesses, we may be required to use more ofamlr esources, if available, to maintain
acquisition program. These cash resources maydadhorrowings under our credit agreement or equitgiebt financings. Our current cre
agreement with our bank lenders contains certagtricons that could adversely affect our ability implement and finance poten
acquisitions. Such restrictions include provisiersch limit our ability to merge or consolidate titor acquire all or a substantial part of
properties or capital stock of, other entities withthe prior written consent of the lenders. Theaa be no assurance that we will be ab
obtain the lendes consent to any of our proposed acquisitions.elfde not have sufficient cash resources, our greethd be limited unle:
we are able to obtain additional capital througbtde equity financings.

Ability to Comply with Financial Covenants of CreHacility

Our credit facility requires the Company to compljth certain specified covenants, restrictionsafiaial ratios and other financial ¢
operating tests. The Compasyability to comply with any of the foregoing restions will depend on its future performance, whigill be
subject to prevailing economic conditions and offaetors, including factors beyond the Compangontrol. A failure to comply with any
these obligations could result in an event of défander the credit facility, which could permitcateration of the Company’indebtedne:
under the credit facility. The Company from timetitne has been unable to comply with some of tharftial covenants contained in the ci
facility (relating to, among other things, the ntaimance of prescribed financial ratios) and haserwhecessary, obtained waivers
amendments to the covenants from its lenders. Aghadhe Company expects to be able to comply vaighcovenants, including the finan:
covenants, of the credit facility, there can beassurance that in the future the Company will e &dbdo so or, if is not able to do so, tha
lenders will be willing to waive such compliancefarther amend such covenants.

Ability to Refinance

We may not be able to refinance existing debt ertdrms of any refinancing may not be as favorakléhe terms of our existing debt
principal payments due at maturity cannot be reitea, extended or repaid with proceeds from otharces, such as new equity capital,
cash flow may not be sufficient to repay all matgrdebt in years when significant payments come due

Goodwill and intangible assets recorded as a regbitiur acquisitions could become impaired.

Goodwill represents the difference between the lase price of acquired companies and the relateddtues of net assets acquired. We
goodwill for impairment annually and whenever egenit changes in circumstances indicate that imgaitrmay have occurred. Goodwill ¢
intangibles represent a significant amount of otaltassets. As of December 31, 2012, our comigoediwill and intangible assets amout
to $209 million, net of accumulated amortizatiorn the extent we do not generate sufficient casidlto recover the net amount of .
investments in goodwill and other intangible asset®rded, the investment could be considered iregand subject to writeff which woulc
directly impact earnings. We expect to record aoid@l goodwill and other intangible assets as alted future business acquisitions. Ful
amortization of such other intangible assets oraimmpents, if any, of goodwill or intangible asseteuld adversely affect our results
operations in any given period.
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Our business has substantial competition that cawaldersely affect our results.

Our business is highly competitive. We compete withariety of industrial supply distributors, sonfewhich may have greater financial :
other resources than us. Although many of our ticathl distribution competitors are small enterpsisselling to customers in a limi
geographic area, we also compete with larger Higiors that provide integrated supply programs saglthose offered through outsourt
services similar to those that are offered by c0ES$egment. Some of these large distributors magbheto supply their products in a m
timely and cosefficient manner than us. Our competitors includ¢alog suppliers, large warehouse stores and, lesser extent, certe
manufacturers. Competitive pressures could adweedtdct DXP’s sales and profitability.

Interruptions in the proper functioning of our imfoation systems could disrupt operations and cdnsegeases in costs and/or decrease
revenues.

The proper functioning of DXP’s information systeiisscritical to the successful operation of ouribass. Although DX informatiol
systems are protected through physical and softwafeguards and remote processing capabilitied, exis information systems are ¢
vulnerable to natural disasters, power losses;aetenunication failures and other problems. If catiinformation systems fail or are otherv
unavailable, DXPS ability to procure products to sell, process sinigg customer orders, identify business opportesitmaintain proper lev
of inventories, collect accounts receivable and g@younts payable and expenses could be adveftstyed.

Risks Associated with Insuran

In the ordinary course of business we at times Imagome the subject of various claims, lawsuits dmiaistrative proceedings seek
damages or other remedies concerning our commegehtions, the products we distribute, employeebsother matters, including poten
claims by individuals alleging exposure to hazasdmaterials as a result of the products we didtilon our operations. Some of these cli
may relate to the activities of businesses thahawee acquired, even though these activities mag bacurred prior to acquisition. The prodi
we distribute are subject to inherent risks thatl@¢aesult in personal injury, property damage,lygan, death or loss of production. A
defects in the products we distribute could reisuftersonal injury, death, property damage, pahubr loss of production.

We maintain insurance to cover potential lossed,ve@ are subject to various deductibles and cagsrusur insurance. It is possible, howe
that judgments could be rendered against us irsdasghich we would be uninsured and beyond thewartsothat we currently have reserve
anticipate incurring for such matters. Even a pliytiuninsured claim, if successful and of sigrafit size, could have a material adverse ¢
on our business, results of operations and finhcoiadition. Furthermore, we may not be able toticme to obtain insurance on commerci
reasonable terms in the future, and we may in@sds from interruption of our business that exaeednsurance coverage. In cases wher
maintain insurance coverage, our insurers may raisieus objections and exceptions to coverage hwbauld make uncertain the timing
amount of any possible insurance recovery.

Risks Associated with Cyl-Security

Through our sales channels, and electronic comratiaits with customers generally, we collect andmtadén confidential information that
customers provide to us in order to purchase pitsducservices. We also acquire and retain infaonatbout suppliers and employees in the
normal course of business. Computer hackers maynpttto penetrateour information systems or our vendors' informatsystems and,
successful, misappropriate confidential customappBer, employee or other business information. In addition, one of our erypks
contractors or other third party may attempt ¢c@dcumvent security measures in order to obtait soformation or inadvertently cause a bre
involving such information. Loss of information ddwexpose us toclaims from customers, suppliers, financial insiitns, regulators, payme
card associations, employees and other personsfamyich could have an adverse effect on our financial dirdand results of operations.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
ITEM 2. Properties

We own our headquarters facility in Houston, Texasich has approximately 48,000 square feet otefBpace. At December 31, 2012,
had approximately 154 facilities which containe@® s&rvices centers, 7 distribution centers andBdation facilities.

The Service Centers segment owns or leases 15@8es@enter facilities. Of these facilities, 126 &veated in the U.S. in 38 states and 2¢
located in 7 Canadian provinces and 1 in Sonoraidde All of the distribution centers are locatadthe U.S., specifically in Californi
Georgia, lllinois, Massachusetts, Montana, Nebraakd Texas. The Innovative Pumping Solutions segmgerates out of 8 facilities loca
in 4 states in the U.S. The Supply Chain Serviegsnent operates supply chain installations in 6duofcustomers’ facilities in 28 U.S. states.

Our owned facilities range from 5,000 square feetd,000 square feet in size. We lease facilibesdrms generally ranging from one to fift
years. The leased facilities range from 1,500 sgfeet to 170,000 square feet in size. The leasesde for periodic specified rental payme
and certain leases are renewable at our optionbé&lfeve that our facilities are suitable and adégjfiar the needs of our existing business
believe that if the leases for any of our faciitigere not renewed, other suitable facilities cdaddeased with no material adverse effect ol
business, financial condition or results of operadi

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is a party to vasitegal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowfsés business. The Company believes
the outcome of any of these various proceedingsnwilhave a material adverse effect on its businessh flows, financial condition or res
of operations.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common EquityRelated Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchasé&quity Securities
Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Matketer the stock symbol "DXPE".

The following table sets forth on a per share btsashigh and low sales prices for our common stckeported by NASDAQ for the peri
indicated.

High Low

2012

Fourth Quarte $51.68 $42.11
Third Quartel $49.85 $ 38.25
Second Quarte $50.35 $ 36.76
First Quartel $45.90 $31.78
2011

Fourth Quarte $ 33.58 $17.01
Third Quartel $27.81 $17.89
Second Quarte $26.71 $22.01
First Quarte! $24.99 $18.43

On March 7, 2013, we had approximately registei@8l Holders of record for outstanding shares ofamummon stock. This number does
include shareholders for whom shares are heldaminee” or “street name”.

We anticipate that future earnings will be retainedinance the continuing development of our bes# In addition, our bank credit faci
prohibits us from declaring or paying any cash akvids or other distributions on our capital statgept for the monthly $0.50 per st
dividend on our Series B convertible preferred Istaghich amounts to $90,000 in the aggregate par.y&ccordingly, we do not anticips
paying cash dividends on our common stock in thesieeable future. The payment of any future divddesill be at the discretion of our Boi
of Directors and will depend upon, among other ghinfuture earnings, the success of our busineBsgiti@s, regulatory and capil
requirements, lenders, and general financial asthbas conditions.

Stock Performance
The following performance graph compares the peréorce of DXP Common Stock to the NASDAQ Industtiadex and the NASDA

Composite (US). The graph assumes that the valtleeafivestment in DXP Common Stock and in eackxndas $100 at December 31, 2
and that all dividends were reinvested.
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Total Return to Stockholder

{Assumes a 5100 investment on December 31, 2007
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[12/31/2007 | 12/31/2008 | 12/31/2009 | 12/31/2010 | 12/31/2011 | 12/31/2012
——DXP Enterprises $100 362 $56 $103 $142 $209
—o—Nasdag Composite| ~ $100 $59 $86 $101 $100 s114

Masdag Industrial 100 £55 381 101 101 119

Investors are cautioned against drawing conclusiam the data contained in the graph as pastteeavt not necessarily indicative of fui
performance.

Equity Compensation Table

The following table provides information regardisigares covered by the Company’s equity compensplaos as of December 31, 2012:

Number of
securities
Number remaining
of Shares Weighted available for
to be issued average Non-vested future issuance
on exercise of exercise price restricted Weighted under equity
outstanding of outstanding shares average compensation
Plan category options options outstanding grant price plans
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholde N/A N/A 210,330 $26.85 191,627
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholde N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total N/A N/A 210,330 $26.85 191,627

(1) Represents shares of common stock authorizédfoance under the 2005 Restricted Stock |
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Unregistered Shares

DXP issued 19,685 unregistered shares of DXP Com8took as part of the consideration for the May2Q]12 acquisition of Industri
Paramedic Services. The unregistered shares wareddo the stockholder of Industrial ParamediwiSes. We relied on Section 4(2) of
Securities Exchange Act as a basis for exemptiom fregistration. All issuances were as a resulprofate negotiation, and not pursuan
public solicitation. In addition, we believe theases were issued to “accredited investors” asiddfby Rule 501 of the Securities Act.

Repurchases of Common Stock

The following table provides information about iempany's purchases of shares of the Company's oomstack during the fourth quartel
2012.

Total Number of  Maximum Number
shares Purchased a of Shares that may

Total Number  Average part of Publicly yet be Purchased
of Shares Price Paid announced Plans or under the Plans or
Purchased per Share Programs Programs
October 1, 2012 through
October 31, 201 - $- - -
November 1, 2012 throug
November 30, 201 30,000 $47.25 30,000 -
December 1, 2012 through
December 31, 201 20,000 $47.86 20,000 -
Totals 50,000 $47.49 50,000 123,70C

On October 26, 2011, the Board of Directors auteatiDXP from time to time to purchase up to 200,8l0éres ¢
DXP's common stock over 24 months. DXP publicly@amted the authorization that day. Purchases mayatie
in open market or in privately negotiated transatti DXP had purchased 76,300 shares under thisréaation
through December 31, 201

Stock Split

On September 8, 2008, the Company’s Board of Direcpproved a two-fasne stock split (effected in the form of a dividdmdissuing on
additional share of common stock for each issuedeshf common stock) which was paid on SeptembePB08 to shareholders of recort
the close of business on September 22, 2008. Al period share and per share amounts set forthisrreport, including earnings per sh
dividends per share and the weighted average nuaflstrares outstanding for basic and dilutive ew®iper share for each respective pe
have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

21




ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial dagaforth below for each of the years in the fjear period ended December 31, 201z
been derived from our audited consolidated findratetements. This information should be read mwaction with "Management's Discuss
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resultgferations" and the consolidated financial statésnand notes thereto included elsew

in this Report.

Years Ended December 31

2008
2012 2011 2010 2009  Restated®
(in thousands, except per share amol)
Consolidated Statement of Earnings D.
Sales $1,097,11 $807,000 $656,20. $583,221 $ 736,88
Gross Profi 319,09: 231,83t 188,39! 151,41. 206,98
Operating income (los! 90,52: 55,48! 37,09. (49,332 48,19:
Income (loss) before income tay 85,00¢ 51,99¢ 32,13. (54,482 42,28¢
Net income (loss 50,98t 31,43" 19,38. (42,412 25,88’
Per share amoun
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 35 % 21 $ 14 $ (324 % 1.9
Common shares outstandi 14,37« 14,30: 13,82 13,117 12,94¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh: $ 33 % 20 $ 13 $ (324 % 1.8
Common and common equivalent share
outstanding 15,21« 15,14: 14,82: 13,117 13,86¢

(1) Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts haen restated due to adoption in the first guartt 2009 c
authoritative guidance which requires awards ofesited restricted stock to be treated as if outstgnioh the
calculation of earnings per share. On Septembe?2@08, DXP paid a two for one common stock dividdD®P’s
financial statements have been restated to refiectffect of this common stock dividend on allipgs presented.
(2)The goodwill and other intangibles impairmenaige and the Precision inventory impairment char@909
reduced operating income by $66.8 million and iasezl basic and diluted loss per share by $

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Total asset $569,73. $ 405,33 $320,62. $ 270,92 $ 397,85
Long-term debt obligation 216,33¢ 114,20! 103,62: 102,91¢ 154,59:
Shareholder equity 208,49: 156,67" 124,12( 90,21 130,18t

22




ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bedraconjunction with the Consolidated Financiaht®ments and related notes contai
within Item 8 of this Report. Management’s Discoissand Analysis uses forwatoeking statements as described previously in oisciosure
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statements.

General Overview

Our products and services are marketed in the dr8tates, Canada, and Mexico to over 50,000 custothat are engaged in a variet
industries, many of which may be countercyclicatéah other. Demand for our products generallyligest to changes in the United States
Canada, and global and micegenomic trends affecting our customers and thesimigés in which they compete in particular. Certaf thes
industries, such as the oil and gas industry, aipgest to volatility driven by a variety of factomshile others, such as the petrochemical ind
and the construction industry, are cyclical andemally affected by changes in the United Stated global economy. As a result, we r
experience changes in demand within particular etarlsegments and product categories as changasio@tr customers' respective mark

During 2008, the general economy weakened. Howélverpil and gas exploration and production busireestinued to be positive during
first half of 2008, before declining during the sad half of 2008. During 2008 our headcount incedasy 18% primarily as a result of th
acquisitions. Sales by the three businesses adquir2008 accounted for $33.4 million of 2008 salgales by three businesses acquirt
2007 accounted for $200.4 million of 2008 salescléding sales of businesses acquired in 2007 afd,2h a same store sales basis,

sales increased 13.2%. This increase resulted &dmnoadbased increase in sales by our Service Centersyditine Pumping Solutiol
locations and Supply Chain locations.

During 2009, the general economy and the oil argleggloration and production business declinedifsigntly. During 2009, our headcot
decreased by approximately 10% as a result of rexctiaken to reduce operating costs. Sales for 2@@8ned by 21% from 2008. Sales
businesses acquired during 2008 accounted for $8#lidn of 2009 sales. Excluding these sales yuaed businesses, sales declined by
from 2008. The 2009 sales decline is primarily doiea broadsased decline in the sales of pumps, bearingstyspfeducts and industri
supplies in connection with a brohdsed decline in the U.S. economy. This economitirdeled to the impairment of our goodwill and e
intangibles. During the fourth quarter of 2009 @@mpany recognized an impairment charge of $53llomfor goodwill and other intangibl
and an impairment charge of $13.8 million to redteevaluation of inventory acquired in the 200@uasition of Precision Industries, Inc. 1
impairment charges did not result in any cash ediperes, did not adversely affect compliance wiblrenants under our credit facility, and
not affect our cash position or cash flows fromragiag activities.

During 2010, the general economy and the oil areleggloration and production business improved. @uployee headcount increasec
approximately 7% as a result of two acquisitionscl&ding the employees at the two acquired busesebhsadcount declined by approxime
1%, primarily as a result of consolidating backa&ffunctions. Sales by Quadna, acquired AprilQl,and D&F, acquired December 1, 2(
accounted for $43.6 million of 2010 sales. Exclgd@uadna and D&F sales, sales for 2010 increa$8d.5.

During 2011, the general economy and the oil argl ey@loration and production business continuetnforove. Our employee headco
increased by 18% primarily as a result of two asijons and hiring additional personnel to suppocteased sales. Sales for the year e
December 31, 2011 increased $150.8 million, or 23.@ approximately $807.0 million from $656.2 nafl in 2010. Sales by KC, acquil
October 10, 2011, accounted for $11.9 million ol PGales. Sales by businesses acquired in 2018,same store sales basis, accounte
$35.6 million of 2011 sales. Excluding 2011 salgdbhbsinesses acquired in 2010 and 2011, on a samesales basis, sales increased 1
from 2010. The majority of the 2011 sales increzm®e from a broatlased increase in sales of pumps, bearings, safedyicts and industri
supplies to customers engaged in oilfield sernadeand gas exploration and production, mining, ofaoturing and petrochemical processing.
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During 2012, the general economy and the oil ansl @gloration and production business remainedtipesiOur employee headcol
increased by 35% primarily as a result of multipteuisitions and hiring additional personnel topsrp increased sales. Sales for the
ended December 31, 2012 increased $290.1 millioB5®%, to $1,097.1 million from $807.0 million 2011. Sales by businesses acquirt
2012 accounted for $86.3 million of 2012 saleseSdly businesses acquired in 2011 accounted fof. B10illion of 2012 sales, on a sa
store sales basis. Excluding 2012 sales of $194li@mby businesses acquired in 2011 and 2012a same store sales basis, sales incr
11.9% from 2011. The majority of this 11.9% salesréase came from a brobdsed increase in sales of pumps, bearings, gafedyicts an
industrial supplies to customers engaged in odftrvice, oil and gas exploration and productioiming, manufacturing and petrochem
processing.

Our sales growth strategy in recent years has é&tos internal growth and acquisitions. Key elemearftour sales strategy include leveray
existing customer relationships by crasdling new products, expanding product offeringsnew and existing customers, and incree
business-tdausiness solutions using system agreements andyscipgin solutions for our integrated supply custosn We will continue 1
review opportunities to grow through the acquisitiof distributors and other businesses that wowufthed our geographic reach and/or
additional products and services. Our results @gfbend on our success in executing our internavtiretrategy and, to the extent we comy
any acquisitions, our ability to integrate suchusijons effectively.

Our strategies to increase productivity includesadidated purchasing programs, centralizing prodisttibution centers, and customer ser
and inside sales functions, converting selectedtions from full warehouse and customer serviceraims to service centers, and u
information technology to increase employee pradiigt

Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31

2012 % 2011 % 2010 %
(in millions, except percentages and per share anx)

Sales $1,097. 100.( $ 807.( 100.( $ 656.: 100.(
Cost of sales 778.( 70.€ 575.% 71.2 467.¢ 71.2
Gross profit 319.1 29.1 231.¢ 28.7 188.¢ 28.7
Selling, general & administrative expens 228.¢ 20.¢ 176.2 21.¢ 151.% 23.1
Operating incom 90.t 8.2 55.5 6.8 37.1 5.€
Interest expens 5.€ 0.t 3.5 0.4 5.2 0.8
Other expense (income) (0.1) - - - (0.2) -
Income before income tax 85.C 7.8 52.C 6.4 32.1 4.8
Provision for income taxes 34.C 3.1 20.€ 2.5 12.7 1.€
Net income $51.( 4.7 $31.¢ 3.¢ $19.¢ 2.€
Per shart

Basic earnings per she $ 3.5¢ $2.1¢ $ 1.4(

Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.3 $ 2.0¢ $1.3:

DXP is organized into three business segments:i&eenters, Supply Chain Services (SCS) and Inh@/&umping Solutions (IPS). T
Service Centers are engaged in providing maintenampair and operating (MRO) products, equipment imtegrated services, includ
technical expertise and logistics capabilitiesptiustrial customers with the ability to providereaday delivery. The Service Centers provi
wide range of MRO products and services in thetiraequipment, bearing, power transmission, hfis& power, metal working, industri
supply and safety product and service categories.SCS segment manages all or part of our custersepply chain, including inventory. 1
IPS segment fabricates and assembles custom-niadeated pump system packages.
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2011

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, 2@32ased $290.1 million, or 35.9%, to approximagly097.1 million from $807.0 millic
in 2011. Sales by businesses acquired in 2012 ateddor $86.3 million of 2012 sales. Sales by hesses acquired in 2011 accountet
$107.7 million of the 2012 increase, on a sameestates basis. Excluding 2012 sales of $194.0aniliy businesses acquired in 2011
2012, on a same store sales basis, sales incrbgs86.1 million, or 11.9% from 2011. The majoritythis 11.9% sales increase came frc
broadbased increase in sales of pumps, bearings, safetiucts and industrial supplies to customers esgjag oilfield service, oil and g
exploration and production, mining, manufacturimgl @etrochemical processing.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of satesased to 29.1% for 2012 compared to 28.7%Herprior corresponding peri
primarily as a result of increased gross profitcpatages experienced by our Innovative Pumpingti®aki and Supply Chain Servic
segments. Supply Chain Servicgsdss profit percentage increased primarily assalref a change in customer mix. The increaseross
profit percentage in the IPS segment was primagilgted to stronger demand for IPS products.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Sellig, general and administrative expense for 2012as®d by approximate
$52.3 million, or 29.7%, when compared to 2011liSgl general and administrative expense by busegacquired in 2012 was $24.3 mill
Selling, general and administrative expense fousttipns that occurred in 2011 accounted for $Iilon of the 2012 increase, on a s
store sales basisExcluding 2012 expenses of $43.6 million by bussessacquired in 2011 and 2012, on a same store lsadés, the incree
primarily related to increased salaries, commissidrealth claims and insurance premiums. As a ptage of sales, the 2012 expe
decreased to 20.8% from 21.9%, primarily as a tefidconomies of scale.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2012 incre@$$35.0 million from $55.5 million to $90.5 millio or 63.1%, compared to !
prior corresponding period. The increase is prilpaglated to the combination of the 35.9% increimssales, the increase in gross profit
percentage of sales, and selling, general and &stnaitive expense increasing only 29.7% comparebdd5.9% increase in sales.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2012 in@édsy $2.1 million, or 58%, from 2011. Approximatéi0.7 million of this increas
resulted from fully amortizing the debt issuancetsaof the old credit facility which was replaced duly 11, 2012. The remainder of
increase in interest expense was primarily thelresincreased borrowings used to acquire busigess

INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféer from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% primarilyedo state income taxes and nor
deductible expenses. Our effective tax rate for226f140% increased from 39.5% from the prior cquoesling period, primarily as a resuli
non-deductible fees associated with acquisitions.

SERVICE CENTERS SEGMENT. Sales for the Service @mnincreased $218.8 million, or 39.1% from th@pdorresponding period. Sa
by businesses acquired in 2012 accounted for $86li®n of 2012 sales. Sales by businesses acquir@®11 accounted for $95.6 million
the 2012 increase, on a same store sales basisidixg 2012 sales of $181.9 million by businesseaed 2011 and 2012, on a same s
sales basis, Service Centesales increased $36.9 million, or 6.6%, on a saoressales basis, from the prior correspondingg@ef his sale
increase is primarily due to continued improveniernihe manufacturing and oil and gas portions eftthS. economy. Operating income for
Service Centers segment increased $24.4 millioB7@%. Excluding 2011 and 2012 acquisitions, diggancome increased $8.3 million,
12.8%, on a same stores sales basis, from the poiwesponding period. This increase was primaatlyibutable to the increased si
mentioned above.

SUPPLY CHAIN SERVICES SEGMENT. Sales for Supply @h&ervices increased by $11.8 million, or 8.2%2@12 compared to the pr
corresponding period. None of the 2012 acquisitirributed sales to this segment. Sales by bss@seacquired in 2011 accounted for $
million of 2012 sales, on a same store sales b@kis.segment experienced a $0.4 million decreasales on a same store sales basis
decrease is primarily due to reduced sales to mestoin the trucking and military related industri®perating income for the SCS segr
increased by $4.0 million, or 47.8%, compared ® phior corresponding period. Excluding 2011 and22@cquisitions, operating inco
increased $3.1 million, or 36.8%, on a same steass basis from the prior corresponding periodk Tfttrease was due to an increase in ¢
profit percentage and a decrease in sales, gesrataddministrative costs related to a reducticediministrative headcount.

INNOVATIVE PUMPING SOLUTIONS SEGMENT. Sales for lomative Pumping Solutions increased by $59.5 nmllior 58.2%, in 201
compared to the prior corresponding period. Thessahcrease resulted from increased capital spgniy our oil and gas and min
customers. Operating income for the IPS segmentased $15.2 million, or 89.7%, primarily as a hesdéi the 58.2% increase in ss
combined with an increased gross profit percentage.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2010

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, 2@&gased $150.8 million, or 23.0%, to approxima&397.0 million from $656.2 millic
in 2010. Sales by KC, acquired October 10, 201toaated for $11.9 million of 2011 sales. Sales bgiesses acquired in 2010, on a ¢
store sales basis, accounted for $35.6 million0dfl2sales. Excluding 2011 sales by businessesradgui 2010 and 2011, on a same store
basis, sales increased 15.8% from 2010.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of sae<28.7% for 2011 and 2010.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, genel and administrative expense for 2011 increase@dproximately $25
million when compared to 2010. A portion of thermse relates to $9.6 million of selling, generad administrative expense for busine
acquired in 2010 and 2011, on a same store sas. lxcluding the expenses of businesses acquir2d10 and 2011, on a same store !
basis, the increase primarily resulted from inoeeasalaries, incentive compensation, employee hsrzefd travel expenses compared to 2
As a percentage of revenue, the 2011 expense dedrém21.9% from 23.1% for 2010.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2011 incre&s19.6% compared to 2010. This increase is thdtresgross profit increasir
23.1% while selling, general and administrativeenge increased only 16.6%.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2011 deeckhy 32.5% from 2010. This decrease primarily ltedurom lower average inter
rates combined with a reduction in the average anoludebt outstanding compared to 2010. On July2P41 we amended our credit facil
This amendment significantly decreased the inteasts and commitment fees applicable at variousrdge ratios from levels in effect bet
July 25, 2011.

INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféer from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% due toestatome taxes and nateductibl
expenses. Our effective tax rate for 2011 of 39véé consistent with the 39.7% rate for 2010.

SERVICE CENTERS SEGMENT. Sales for Service Centereeased $107.5 million, or 23.7%. Excluding $énillion of first quarter 201
Quadna Service Centers segment sales, first elemesths of 2011 sales by D&F of $23.2 million andShnillion of fourth quarter 2011 K
Service Centers segment sales, Service Center segales for 2011 increased 15.3% from 2010, oaraesstore sales basis. This s
increase is primarily due to improvement in theasitl gas and manufacturing portions of the U.Sneery. Operating income for the Sen
Centers segment increased 27.6%, primarily asudt refsthe 23.7% increase in sales combined witlinarease in gross profit as a percen
of sales.

SUPPLY CHAIN SERVICES SEGMENT. Sales for Supply @®h&ervices increased by $18.0 million, or 14.26%,Z011 when compared
2010. Excluding KC SCS segment sales of $5.9 millBCS segment sales for 2011 increased 9.5% ffffl, Dn a same store sales b
Operating income for the SCS segment increasedd Britnarily as a result of the 14.2% increase Iassfor this segment.

INNOVATIVE PUMPING SOLUTIONS SEGMENT. Sales for lomative Pumping Solutions increased by $25.3 nmllior 32.8% for 201
when compared to 2010. Excluding first quarter 2Qiiadna IPS sales of $3.3 million, IPS sales fdrl2ibicreased 28.5% from 2010, c
same store sales basis. The sales increase refutedhe increase in capital spending by our oitl @as and mining related custom
Operating income for the IPS segment increased?62&3 a result of the 32.8% increase in sales cardbivith relatively consistent sellir
general and administrative expenses.
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Pro Forma Results

The pro forma unaudited results of operations fer €ompany on a consolidated basis for the yeatede@ecember 31, 2012 and 2(
assuming the acquisitions of businesses complat2@i2 were consummated as of January 1, 201 Wfwillo

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(unaudited)
(in millions,
except for per share dat
Net sales $1,177. $ 1,062.!
Net income $ 54 $ 41.
Per share dat
Basic Earning: $ 3.7t $ 2.8¢
Diluted Earnings $ 3.5¢ $ 2.7

The pro forma unaudited results of operations fer €ompany on a consolidated basis for the yeatede®ecember 31, 2010 and 2(
assuming the acquisitions of businesses complat2@il were consummated as of January 1, 201Gwillo

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(unaudited)
(in millions,
except for per share dat
Net sales $903.. $ 778.:
Net income $ 35. $ 22!
Per share dat
Basic Earning: $ 2.4¢ $ 1.6t
Diluted Earnings $ 2.3t $ 1.5¢

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General Overview

As a distributor of MRO products and services, aguire significant amounts of working capital temduinventories and accounts receive
Additional cash is required for capital items swh information technology, warehouse equipment Gapital expenditures for our saf
products and services category. We also requite toagay our lease obligations and to service ebt.d

We generated approximately $51.2 million of casbperating activities in 2012 as compared to geimgy&25.8 million in 2011. This chan
between the two years was primarily attributablh®$19.5 million increase in net income.

During 2012 we paid $106.0 million in cash, ne®&2.4 million of cash acquired, for seven businessejuired during 2012 and $38.9 mil
for an acquisition that occurred in late 2011 coragao paying $18.4 million in cash related to pluechase of two businesses during 2011.
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We purchased approximately $14.1 million of capéssets during 2012 compared to $4.1 million fdt12@Capital expenditures during 2!
were related primarily to transportation equipmetdmputer equipment, computer software, productguoipment, inventory handli
equipment, safety rental equipment and buildingrawpments. Capital expenditures for 2013 are ergett be lower than the 2012 amount.

At December 31, 2012, our total long-term debtludimg the current portion, was $238.4 million cargd to total capitalization (total long-
term debt plus shareholdeexjuity) of $446.9 million. Approximately $234.5 hioh of this outstanding debt bears interest atowsr floating
rates. Therefore, as an example, a 200 basis pairgase in interest rates would increase our drintexest expense by approximately §
million.

Our normal trade terms for our customers requisar@nt within 30 days of invoice date. In resporessedmpetition and customer demand:
will offer extended terms to selected customerdwgibod credit history. Customers that are finahcisirong tend to request extended te
more often than customers that are not financitigng. Many of our customers, including compatiged in the Fortune 500, do not pay
within stated terms for a variety of reasons, idolg a general business philosophy to pay vendotata as possible.

During 2012, the amount available to be borrowedeurour credit facility increased from $78.2 mitli@t December 31, 2011, to $1(
million at December 31, 2012. The increase in atidlity is primarily the result of the terms of tinew credit facility. We believe that 1
liquidity of our balance sheet and credit facityDecember 31, 2012, provides us with the ahitityneet our working capital needs, sched
principal payments, capital expenditures and S&iesnvertible preferred stock dividend paymentsrip2013.

Credit Facility

On July 11, 2012 DXP entered into a credit faciligith Wells Fargo Bank National Association, asuleg Lender, Swingline Lender a
Administrative Agent for the lenders. On Decembgy 2012 the Company amended the agreement whickased the Credit Facility by $
million (the “Facility”). The Facility consists of a $130 million term loamdaa revolving credit facility that provides a $26nillion line of
credit to the Company as of December 31, 2012.

The line of credit portion of the Facility providése option of interest at LIBOR plus an applicabilargin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25%
prime plus an applicable margin from 0.25% to 1.2BB&re the applicable margin is determined by tben@anys leverage ratio as defined
the Facility at the date of borrowing. Rates foe %130 million term loan component are 25 basisigohigher than the line of cre
borrowings. Commitment fees of 0.20% to 0.40% peum are payable on the portion of the Facilityady not in use at any given time
the line of credit. Commitment fees are includeéhéerest in the consolidated statements of income.

Primarily because the leverage ratio was higher dfte acquisition of HSE that occurred on July 2012, interest rates in effect on July
2012 were approximately 70 basis points higher ttheay were immediately prior to the acquisition. ppgximately $0.7 million of de
issuance costs associated with the prior crediitiaoere expensed in the third quarter of 2012.

On December 31, 2012, the LIBOR based rate onirleeof credit portion of the Facility was LIBOR gld.75%, the prime based rate of
Facility was prime plus 0.75%, the LIBOR based matethe term loan portion of the Facility was LIB@Ris 2.00% and the commitment
was 0.30%. At December 31, 2012, $226.5 million Wasowed under the Facility at a weighted averatgrest rate of approximately 2.1
under the LIBOR options and $8.0 million was boreaat 3.75% under the prime option. At December2812, the Company had $10
million available for borrowing under the Facility.

The Facility expires on July 11, 2017. The Facitipntains financial covenants defining various fiicial measures and levels of these mea
with which the Company must comply. Covenant coane is assessed as of each quarter end.
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The Facility’s principal financial covenants inctud

Consolidated Leverage Ratio — The Facility requites the Compang’ Consolidated Leverage Ratio, determined at tlileofreach fisci
quarter, not exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last @@ach quarter from the closing date through M&th2015 and not to exceed 3.25to 1.00"
June 30, 2015 and thereafter. The ConsolidatedrageeRatio is defined as the outstanding indebtsdd&vided by Consolidated EBITDA -
the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters mgdin or immediately prior to such date. Indebtadris defined under the Facility for finan
covenant purposes as: (a) all obligations of DXPbiarrowed money including but not limited to olaligons evidenced by bonds, debent
notes or other similar instruments; (b) obligatidnspay deferred purchase price of property orisesy (c) capital lease obligations;
obligations under conditional sale or other tig¢ention agreements relating to property purcha@dssued and outstanding letters of cr
and (f) contingent obligations for funded indebtesin At December 31, 2012, the Company’s Leverag® Ras 1.87 to 1.00.

Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rafitie-Facility requires that the Consolidated Fixdw@e Coverage Ratio on the last day of
quarter be not less than 1.25 to 1.0 with “Consdéd Fixed Charge Coverage Ratitgfined as the ratio of (a) Consolidated EBITDA tiog
period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters endinguhalate minus capital expenditures during suclog€excluding acquisitions) minus inco
tax expense paid minus the aggregate amount oictest payments defined in the agreement to (b)ritexest expense paid in cash, schec
principal payments in respect of long-term debt #redcurrent portion of capital lease obligatiooasguch 12nonth period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its sisiveid. At December 31, 2012, the Company's Cotiatdd Fixed Charge Coverage R
was 3.10 to 1.00.

Asset Coverage Ratio —The credit facility requittesst the Asset Coverage Ratio at any time be rsst lean 1.0 to 1.0 withASset Coverag
Ratio” defined as the ratio of (a) the sum of 85% of mebants receivable plus 65% of net inventory totlile) aggregate outstanding amout
the revolving credit outstandings on such dateDé&tember 31, 2012, the Company's Asset Coverage Was 2.04 to 1.00.

Consolidated EBITDA as defined under the Facildgy financial covenant purposes means, without dafibn, for any period the consolida
net income of DXP plus, to the extent deductedaleudating consolidated net income, depreciatiomprization (except to the extent that s
non-cash charges are reserved for cash charges takbn in the future), notash compensation including stock option or restiicstoc
expense, interest expense and income tax expentexés based on income, certain ¢ing costs associated with our acquisitions, iraggr
costs, facility consolidation and closing costyesance costs and expenses andtone-compensation costs in connection with the esitipn
of HSE and any permitted acquisition, writewn of cash expenses incurred in connection vaigheixisting credit agreement and extraordi
losses less interest income and extraordinary g&loasolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted to give foona effect to disposals or busin
acquisitions assuming that such transaction(s)deadrred on the first day of the period excludiigrcome statement items attributable to
assets or equity interests that is subject to glighosition made during the period and includingirdome statement items attributable
property or equity interests of such acquisitioasmtted under the Facility.
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The following table sets forth the computationiué t everage Ratio as of December 31, 20ihlfousands, except for ratids

For the Twelve Months endec Leverage
December 31, 2012 Ratio
Income before taxe $ 85,00
Interest expens 5,56(
Depreciation and amortizatic 18,08:
Stock compensation exper 1,95¢
Pro forma acquisition EBITD; 16,54:
Other adjustments 91:
() Defined EBITDA $ 128,06

As of December 31, 201

Total lonc-term debi $ 238,39

Letters of credit outstanding 47€

() Defined indebtedness $ 238,87,

Leverage Ratio (B)/(A) 1.87

Borrowings (in thousands)
December 31, December 31, Increase
20120 20110 (Decrease)

Current portion of lon-term debt $ 22,05 $ 69 $ 21,36
Long-term debt, less current portion 216,33¢ 114,20 102,13:
Total long-term debt $ 238,39 $ 114,89 $ 123,491
Amount available $ 109,53(M $ 78,2010 $ 31,32

(1) Represents amount available to be borroweldesinidicated date under the Facil

(2) The funds obtained from the increase in delsevpeimarily used to fund acquisitior

(3) Borrowings as of December 31, 2011 were pritpamder the Compang’previous credit facilit
which was terminated and replaced with the curceadit facility on July 11, 2012.

Performance Metrics (in days;

Three Months Ended
December 31,

Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease)
Days of sales outstandii 57.2 56.¢ 0.4
Inventory turns 8.C 6.€ 1.4

Accounts receivable days of sales outstanding W&r2 days at December 31, 2012 compared to 56.8 aapecember 31, 2011. The sl
increase resulted from higher than average daysales outstanding at our 2012 business acquisitidawever, this increase was parti
offset by improvements on days of sales outstandkujuding 2012 and 2011 acquisitions on a sante s@les basis. Inventory turns were
at December 31, 2012 and 6.6 at December 31, ZlHd.increase in inventory turns primarily resulfeasim the acquisitions of Industr
Paramedic Services and HSE which have very litthentory.
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Funding Commitment

We believe our cash generated from operations aaithhle under our credit facility will meet ourmmeal working capital needs during the r
twelve months. However, we may require additiorethtdoutside of our credit facility or equity finang to fund potential acquisitions. St
additional financings may include additional bardbtor the public or private sale of debt or equeigurities. In connection with any s
financing, we may issue securities that substaytitillute the interests of our shareholders. We matybe able to obtain additional financing
attractive terms, if at all. Refer to footnote nwenbwo in Contractual Obligations table below.

Share Repurchases

On October 26, 2011, the Board of Directors auteatiDXP from time to time to purchase up to 200,8l68res of DXP's common stock ¢
24 months. DXP publicly announced the authorizatiat day. Purchases may be made in open marketoivately negotiated transactions.

During 2012, DXP purchased 76,300 shares of DXBrsmon stock at an average price per share of $4/m@er this authorization.
During 2011, DXP repurchased 65,171 shares of D¥#tsmon stock in non-open market transactions aivarage price per share of $22.18.
Contractual Obligations

The impact that our contractual obligations as e€&@mber 31, 2012 are expected to have on our itguadd cash flow in future periods is
follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1 35 More than 5
Year 1-3 Years Years Years Total
Long-term debt, including current portic $ 22,05 $57,43t $158,90. $ - $238,39
Operating lease obligatiol 17,90¢ 25,927 13,13 8,721 65,68¢
Estimated interest paymerits 2,81F 3,82¢ 1,04¢ - 7,68¢
Total $42,770 $87,18!{ $173,08: $ 8,72 $ 311,76
(1) Amounts represent the expected cash paymemtsrddbng-term debt and do not include any faiueal

adjustment.

(2) Assumes interest rates in effect at DecembgP@12. Assumes debt is paid on maturity date atdaplacec
Does not include interest on the revolving linedit as borrowings under the Facility fluctudtbe amounts ¢
interest incurred for borrowings under the revadviimes of credit were approximately $4.9 millié#8.0 million
and $2.3 million for the years ended, 2010, 201d 201 2, respectively. Management anticipates aeased
level of interest payments on the Facility in 2@k3a result of expected increased borrowings td é&xpected
acquisitions

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not paigpin transactions that generate relationshiph witconsolidated entities or finant
partnerships, such as entities often referred ®trastured finance or special purpose entitie®E'S"), which would have been establishet
the purpose of facilitating offalance sheet arrangements or other contractualhpw or limited purposes. As of December 31, 201 wert
not involved in any unconsolidated SPE transactionsdid we have any other off-balance sheet gements.

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, DXP enters autotractual arrangements under which DXP may aggréedemnify customers from a
losses incurred relating to the services we perf@uoch indemnification obligations may not be sabje maximum loss clauses. Historice
payments made related to these indemnities haveiberaterial.
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DISCUSSION OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS POLICIES

Critical accounting and business policies are thibaeare both most important to the portrayal abempanys financial position and results
operations, and require managememstibjective or complex judgments. These policesgehbeen discussed with the Audit Committee o
Board of Directors of DXP. Below is a discussionudifat we believe are our critical accounting pekci

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the CompanZanadian subsidiaries are measured using loo@nmies as their functional currencies. Assets
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at remt exchange rates, while income and expensedramelated at average exchange r
Translation gains and losses are reported in @imprehensive income (loss) in the statementsmga@ated comprehensive income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees the management to make estin
and assumptions in determining the reported amafrassets and liabilities and disclosure of cageint assets and liabilities at the date o
financial statements and the reported amounts wémges and expenses during the reporting periodhénopinion of management,
adjustments necessary in order to make the finastadéements not misleading have been includeduaatesults could differ from tho
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company is required to maximize the use of miadde inputs and minimize the use of unobservaipets when measuring fair val
Generally accepted accounting principles in the. [JI3SGAAP”) establishes a fair value hierarchy based on thed Evindependent, objecti
evidence surrounding the inputs used to measurgdaie. A financial instrumers’categorization within the fair value hierarchyased upc
the lowest level of input that is significant teetfair value measurement. USGAAP prioritizes thguts into three levels that may be use
measure fair value:

Level 1

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are quoted prices in active markets for idahassets or liabilities.

Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for whitiere are inputs other than quoted prices thabhservable for the asset or liability sucl
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesattive markets; quoted prices for identical asset&bilities in markets with insufficient volur
or infrequent transactions (less active markets)modelderived valuations in which significant inputs arbservable or can be deri
principally from, or corroborated by, observablerke4 data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are unobservable inputs to the valuation ouetlogy that are significant to 1
measurement of the fair value of the assets oilitiab.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company's presentation of cash includes casiiadgnts. Cash equivalents are defined as gkart-investments with maturity dates of
days or less at time of purchase.
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Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables consist primarily of uncollateed customer obligations due under normal tradagewhich usually require payment wit
30 days of the invoice date. However, these payiteents are extended in select cases and many ceista@m not pay within stated trade tel

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of finished goodsdaare priced at lower of cost or market, cost @palatermined using the first-in, firets
(“FIFO") method. Reserves are provided against inventooegdtimated obsolescence based upon the agingedhventories and marl
trends.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are carried on the basisosf. Expenditures for major additions and betteare capitalized. Depreciation
property and equipment is computed using the sttdilge method. Maintenance and repairs of depreciabsets are charged against ean
as incurred. Additions and improvements are cadpédl When properties are retired or otherwise afisd of, the cost and accumul:
depreciation are removed from the accounts andsgaifosses are credited or charged to earnings.

The principal estimated useful lives used in debeimy depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 2C-39 years

Building improvement: 1C-20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-20 years

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of estimated useful life or related le@sen

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a bgsiaequisition are recorded at fair value on the dathe acquisition. Purchase consider:
in excess of the aggregate fair value of acquistdassets is allocated to goodwill. The total amafiigoodwill arising from an acquisition m
be assigned to one or more reporting units whearatporting units are expected to benefit fromesgies of the combination. The methor
assigning goodwill to reporting units shall be @eble and supportable and applied in a consist@mner and may involve estimates
assumption.

The Company tests goodwill and other indefiniteedivintangible assets for impairment on an annusisband when events or change
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount nwybe recoverable. The Company assigns the ogriglue of these intangible assets t
"reporting units" and applies the test for goodwillthe reporting unit level. A reporting unit isfithed as an operating segment or one
below a segment (a "component") if the componerd tsusiness and discrete information is preparet ramiewed regularly by segm
management.
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The Companys goodwill impairment assessment first requireduatang qualitative factors to determine if a refpay unit's carrying valt
would more likely than not exceed its fair valuethe Company concludes, based on the qualitaggessment, that a reporting unit's carr
value would more likely than not exceed its faituega the Company would perform a twtep quantitative test for that reporting unit. \itz
guantitative assessment is performed, the firgt &eto identify a potential impairment, and thes®l step measures the amount of
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill is deemed to bpaired if the carrying amount of a reporting wgbodwill exceeds its estimated fair va
No impairment ogoodwill was required in 2012, 2011 or 2010.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets, Excluding Goodwill

The Company tests loriyed assets or asset groups for recoverabilitaomnnual basis and when events or changes imtitances indica
that their carrying amount may not be recovera@iecumstances which could trigger a review includet are not limited to: significa
decreases in the market price of the asset; sigmifiadverse changes in the business climate alfizgfors; accumulation of costs significa
in excess of the amount originally expected forabguisition or construction of the asset; curgmriod cash flow or operating losses comb
with a history of losses or a forecast of contilguiosses associated with the use of the assetcuament expectation that the asset will n
likely than not be sold or disposed significantlgfdre the end of its estimated useful life. Recabiity is assessed based on the carn
amount of the asset and its fair value which isegalty determined based on the sum of the undigedurash flows expected to result from
use and the eventual disposal of the asset, asawalbecific appraisal in certain instances. Anaiimmpent loss is recognized when the carr
amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value.

Revenue Recognitic

For binding agreements to fabricate tangible aswetsustomer specifications, the Company recognieeenues using the percentag:
completion method. Under this method, revenueseregnized as costs are incurred and include esthpofits calculated on the basis of
relationship between costs incurred and total egéoh costs at completion. If at any time expectsixexceed the value of the contract
loss is recognized immediately.

For other sales, the Company recognizes revenuea ah agreement is in place, the price is fixald for product passes to the custome
services have been provided, and collectabilitgésonably assured. Revenues are recorded ndésftares.

The Company reserves for potential customer retioased upon the historical level of returns.
Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administeaixpense

Cost of sales includes product and product relatets, inbound freight charges, internal transéstc and depreciation. Selling, general
administrative expense includes purchasing andviegecosts, inspection costs, warehousing cogpretiation and amortization. DXP's g1
margins may not be comparable to those of othétiestsince some entities include all of the castated to their distribution network in ¢
of sales and others like DXP exclude a portionhese costs from gross margin, including the costsline item, such as selling, general
administrative expense.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling chahbiiéed to customers as sales. Shipping and hagpdlarges paid to others are class
as a component of cost of sales.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company uses restricted stock for stbaked compensation programs. The Company measurggensation cost with respect to eq
instruments granted as stobksed payments to employees based upon the estifaitealue of the equity instruments at the dzftéhe gran
The cost as measured is recognized as expens¢heveeriod which an employee is required to progieievices in exchange for the award.

Income Taxe

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Deferred incomeassets and liabilities are computec
differences between the financial statement andne tax bases of assets and liabilities. Such meefeincome tax asset and liabi
computations are based on enacted tax laws and amelicable to periods in which the differences axpected to reverse. Valual
allowances are established to reduce deferred iadamassets to the amounts expected to be realized
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Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta»

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardafd“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which requires thatsition taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return be recognized in tharftial statements when it is more likely than (het a likelihood of more than fifty perce
that the position would be sustained upon exanunaby tax authorities. A recognized tax positiothien measured at the largest amou
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likelfy eing realized upon ultimate settlement. The Canypand its subsidiaries file income
returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and vasi@tates. With few exceptions, the Company is ngdo subject to U. S. federal, state and |
tax examination by tax authorities for years ptm2007. The Company's policy is to recognize ggerelated to unrecognized tax benefi
interest expense and penalties as operating expehise Company believes that it has appropriatpatifor the income tax positions tal
and to be taken on its tax returns and that itsuate for tax liabilities are adequate for all operars based on an assessment of many f
including past experience and interpretations »idw applied to the facts of each matter.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Bq&ASB) issued an amendment to the fair valuesmesnent guidance and disclos
requirements. The new requirements were effectivettfe first interim or annual period beginningeafDecember 15, 2011 and were t
applied prospectively. DXP adopted the new requéms in the first quarter of 2012; however, thepidm of this guidance did not hav
material effect on its consolidated financial piosit results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an amendment toetiiirements for presenting comprehensive income.ridw requirements were effect
for the first interim or annual period beginningeafDecember 15, 2011 and were to be applied paadsely. The standard requires o
comprehensive income to be presented in a contsataiement of comprehensive income that would aoenithe components of net inco
and other comprehensive income, or in a separatecdnsecutive, statement following the statemérnih@ome. DXP elected to early ad
these new requirements effective December 31, 2011.

In September 2010, the FASB issued an accountarglatds update with new guidance on annual goodwnflhirment testing. The stands
update allows an entity to first assess qualitafintors to determine if it is more likely than ribat the fair value of a reporting unit is lesar
it's carrying amount. If based on its qualitatiasessment an entity concludes it is more likely that that the fair value of a reporting un
less than its carrying amount, quantitative impeinintesting is required. However, if an entity dodes otherwise, quantitative impairm
testing is not required. The standards updateféxtdfe for annual and interim goodwill impairmessts performed for fiscal years begint
after December 15, 2011, with early adoption pdrditDXP elected to early adopt these new requintsneffective December 31, 2011.

Inflation

We do not believe the effects of inflation have angterial adverse effect on our results of openatior financial condition. We attempt
minimize inflationary trends by passing manufaatyméce increases on to the customer wheneveripadde.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

Our market risk results primarily from volatility interest rates. Our exposure to interest rakereates primarily to our debt portfolio. Us
floating interest rate debt outstanding at Decen8ier2012, a 100 basis point increase in inter@ssrwould increase our annual inte
expense by approximately $2.3 million. Also seestRractors,included in Item 1A of this report for additiondk factors associated with «

business.

The table below provides information about the Canys market sensitive financial instruments andstitutes a forward-looking statement.

Principal Amount By Expected Maturity
(in thousands, except percentages)

Fair

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total Value
Fixed Rate Lon- term Deb  $1,43: $1,43: $1,00¢ - - - $3,87( $3,87(
Average Interes Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% - - -
Floating Rate Long-term $20,62! $24,06: $30,93° $34,37($124,52! - $234,52($234,52!
Debt
Average Interest Rate (1. 2.17% 2.17% 2.17% 2.17% 2.17%
Total Maturities $22,05 $25,49! $31,94. $34,37($124,52! - $238,39($238,39!

(1) Assumes weighted average floating interessriateffect at December 31, 20:

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiasesf December 31, 2012 and 2(
and the related consolidated statements of incordecamprehensive income, shareholders' equity asd ffows for each of the three year
the period ended December 31, 2012. These coasadidfinancial statements are the responsibilitthef Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with audistamdards of the Public Company Accounting OvétsBpard (United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetatmliobtain reasonable assurance about whethdintreial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagrferred to above present fairly, in all mater@spects, the consolidated financial pos
of DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries at Ddzam31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of theiratjpms and their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20T@nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of Amer

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Bawer 31, 2012, based on the criteria establishéatérnal Control—ntegrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatishthe Treadway Commission, and our report dateatchl 11, 2013, expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited DXP Enterprises, Iscinternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2012, based on criteria establish
Internal Control-ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee oinSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissio®$%0). DXF
Enterprises, Incs management is responsible for maintaining effecititernal control over financial reporting and fts assessment of 1
effectiveness of internal control over financigbeeting included in the accompanying ManagenseRt&port on Internal Control over Finan
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express amagi on the company's internal control over finahoéporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversightid&@nited States). Those standi
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aath&ing the design and operating effectivenesgtefnal control based on the asse
risk. Our audit also included performing such otheocedures as we considered necessary in thentitances. We believe that our a
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeadcepted accounting principles.
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, DXP Enterprises, Inc. maintainetkefive internal control over financial reporting af December 31, 2012, based on cri
established innternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmnthe Treadway Commissi
(COSO0).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. as of Dbeell, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidatattments of income &
comprehensive income, shareholdemuity, and cash flows for each of the years inttinee year period ended December 31, 2012. Owrt
thereon dated March 11, 2013 expressed an uncaghtifiinion.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2013
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company has assessed the effectiveness ofataal control over financial reporting as of Deter 31, 2012 based on criteria establi:
by Internal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmhthe Treadway CommissionGOSC
Framework”). The Compang’management is responsible for establishing aridtaising adequate internal controls over financegorting
The Company’s independent registered public acemtstthat audited the Compasyfinancial statements as of December 31, 2012
issued an attestation report on the Company’sriaterontrol over financial reporting, which appeanspage 36.

Internal control over financial reporting is a pees designed by, or under the supervision of, apaoyis principal executive and princi|
financial officers, and effected by the Companyoard of directors, management and other perkotmerovide reasonable assurs
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for exdkpurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. A companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclgdénose policies and procedures that (1) pert:
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti@rsd dispositions of the assets of the comg
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactisnsecorded as necessary to permit preparatidimanicial statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and teaeipts and expenditures of the company are beiage only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance fiagapdevention or timely detection
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition & tompanys assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statements. Because o
inherent limitations, internal control over finaakreporting may not prevent or detect misstatemefitso, projections of any evaluation
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiglethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with policies or procedures may detatmsr

The Companys assessment of the effectiveness of its interoafral over financial reporting included testingdaevaluating the design &
operating effectiveness of its internal control$hwthe participation of its principal executive gmincipal financial officers. In management’
opinion, the Company has maintained effective mdecontrol over financial reporting as of Decem®&y 2012, based on criteria establishe
the COSO Framework.

/s/ David R. Little /s] Mac McConnell
David R. Little Mac McConnell
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice PresitlEinance and Chief Financial Officer
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowancesdobtful account

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

of $7,204 in 2012 and $6,202 in 2C

Inventories, ne

Prepaid expenses and other current a

Deferred income taxe
Total current assets

Property and equipment, r

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net of accumulated anabidiz of
$31,699 in 2012 and $26,175 in 2(
Non-current deferred income tax

Other lon¢-term asset
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of lor-term debi

Trade accounts payat

Outstanding checks related to acquisit

Accrued wages and benel
Federal income taxes payal

Customer advanct

Other current liabilitie:!
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturiti
Non-current deferred income tax
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes

Shareholder’ equity:

Series A preferred stock, 1/¥&ote per share; $1.00 par value
liguidation preference of $100 per share ($11Rextember 31,

2012);

1,000,000 shares authorized; 1,122 shares issueduwstanding
Series B convertible preferred stock, 1fibte per share; $1.0(
par value; $100 stated value; liquidation prefeeeof $100 per

share ($1,500 at December 31, 2012); 1,000,00@sha

authorized;

15,000 shares issued and outstan:

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 starg®rized:;

14,118,348 in 2012 and 14,118,220 in 2011 shaseei

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Treasury stock, at cost (141,471 shares at Dece®ib&@012 and

65,171 shares at December 31, 2(

Total shareholder’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

December 31, 201;

December 31, 201.

$ 1045 $ 150
174,83 137,02
101,42; 93,901

3,811 2,23(
5,18z 4,53¢
295,70; 239,20
58,71: 16,917
145,78 101,76«
63,18¢ 43,19¢

- 1,58¢
6,34( 2,68(

$ 569,73 $ 405,33

$ 22,05 $ 69
74,35¢ 62,12:

- 36,697
15,21¢ 12,71¢
1,69¢ 2,40¢
2,99¢ 3,761
12,13 16,05¢
128,45: 134,45¢
216,33 114,20
16,44 ]

1 1

15 15

141 141
78,55¢ 75,20«
133,59 82,69¢
1,05¢ 64
(4,867 (1,445
208,49; 156,67!
$ 569,73 $ 405,33

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative expense
Operating incom

Other (income) expen:
Interest expense

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Preferred stock dividend
Net income attributable 1
common shareholders

Net income

Gain from interest rate swap, net of
income taxe:

Gain on long-term investment,

net of income taxe

Cumulative translation adjustment,
net of income taxe

Comprehensive income

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average common
shares outstanding

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average common shares
and common equivalent
shares outstanding

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
$ 1,097,11 $ 807,00 $ 656,20
778,01¢ 575,16¢ 467,80°
319,09: 231,83t 188,39}
228,56 176,35: 151,30
90,52% 55,48t 37,09:
(47) (28) (249
5,56( 3,51¢ 5,20¢
85,00¢ 51,99¢ 32,13:
34,02¢ 20,55¢ 12,75
50,98¢ 31,43° 19,38:
90 9C 90
$ 50,89! $ 31,34 $ 19,29
$ 50,98! $ 31,43 $ 19,38
= = 26
37¢ 64 -
617 - -
$ 51,98l $ 31,50 $ 19,40
$ 3.5 $ 2.1¢ $ 1.4
14,37 14,30: 13,82!
$ 3.3 $ 2.0¢ $ 13
15,21 15,14 14,82:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

41




DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated
Series A Series B Other
Preferred Preferred Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total

BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 2009 $1 $ 1t $ 12¢ $58,03° $32,05 $ $(26 $90,21:
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense

for restricted stoc - - - 972 - - - 972
Net gain on interest rate sw

for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 26 26
Issuance of 498,730 shares

connection with acquisitior - - 5 7,061 - - - 7,06¢
Issuance of 493,791 shares

upon

conversion of notes to

common stocl - - 5 6,20¢ - - - 6,211

Exercise of stock options an
vesting of restricted stock fc
149,886 shares of common

stock - - 1 33¢ - - - 34C
Net income - - - - 19,38: - - 19,38:
BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 2010 $1 $ 1 $ 14( $72,61t $51,34¢ $ - $ - $124,12
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense

for restricted stoc - - - 1,25¢ - - - 1,25¢
Net gain on lon-term

investment

for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 64 64
Issuance of 35,714 shares it

connection with acquisitior - - - 1,14: - - - 1,14:
Vesting of restricted stock fc

68,069 shares of common

stock - - 1 18¢ - - - 19C
Acquisition of 65,171 shares

of

treasury stocl - - - - - (1,445 - (1,445
Net income = = = = 31,43% = = 31,43]
BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31, 2011 $1 $ 1t $ 14, $75,20¢ $82,69' $(1,445 $64 $156,67!
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense

for restricted stoc - - - 1,95¢ - - - 1,95¢
Net gain on lon-term

investment

for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 37¢ 37¢

Issuance of 19,685 shares it

connection with an

acquisition - - - 94¢€ - - - 94¢
Vesting of restricted stock fc

75,419 shares of common

stock = = = 44¢ - - - 44¢
Acquisition of 76,300 shares

of

treasury stocl - - - - - (3,422 - (3,422
Cumulative translation

adjustmen - - - - - - 617 617
Net income - - - - 50,98¢ - - 50,98¢

BALANCES AT



DECEMBER 31, 2012 $1 $ 1t $ 141 $78,55¢ $133,591 $(4,867 $1,05¢ $208,49:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by

operating activities
Depreciatiot
Amortization of intangible asse
Gain on sale of equipme
Write-off of debt issuance cos
Compensation expense for restricted s
Tax benefit related to vesting of restricséock
Deferred income taxi
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, het o
assets and liabilities acquired in business adpns:
Trade accounts receival
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipm

Proceeds from the sale of equipm

Purchase of lor-term investmen

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from del

Principal payments on revolving line of credit anter long-term

debt

Dividends paic

Purchase of treasury sto

Proceeds from exercise of stock optir

Tax benefit related to vesting of restricted stock
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY ON CASH

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASt

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for Intere
Cash paid for Income Tax
Cash received from Income Tax Refu

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements .

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
$ 50,98! $ 31,43 $ 19,38:
7,19¢ 3,51( 3,74¢
10,88¢ 6,57¢ 5,821

- - (188

654 5 :
1,95¢ 1,25¢ 972
(680) (198, (215,
1,23( 2,42¢ 3,35:
(1,978 (21,548 (14,528
(3,470 (4,258 2,02¢
(2,211 (2,617 1,16¢
(13,361 9,24¢ 2,371
51,20¢ 25,82¢ 23,90¢
(14,110 (4,096 (1,184
- - 1,42¢

(105) (1,572 !
(144,879 (18,434 (18,394
(159,094 (24,102 (18,150
465,16: 224,30 141,211
(345,231 (223,959 (148,798
(90) (90) (90)
(3,422 (1,445 i

- - 12t

68C 19¢ 21F
117,10( (989 (7,332
(264 . ;
8,04¢ 737 (1574
1,507 77C 2,344

$ 10,45! $ 150 $ 770
$ 4,28 $ 3,49 $ 5,24(
$32,31: $14,19( $ 8,34
$ 380 $ 29 $ 25

Purchase of businesses in 2010 excludes $20 mdfi@@mmon stock, notes and convertible notes tsdueonnection with acquisitions dur
2010. Proceeds from debt exclude $6.3 million afvestible notes issued in connection with an adgtioisin 2010 and converted to comn
stock in 2010. Purchases of businesses in 201L@esI$36.7 million in outstanding checks at Decear8tie2011 and $1.1 million of comm
stock issued in connection with an acquisitionsquisitions of businesses in 2012 include $36.7iomlwhich represented outstanding cht
at December 31, 2011, related to an acquisitiohdbeurred in 2011. Purchases of businesses in 8gdkide $0.9 million in common stc
issued in connection with an acquisition.




DXP ENTERPRISES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY

DXP Enterprises, Inc. together with its subsidiar(eollectively “DXP,” “Company,” “us,” “we,” or “arr”) was incorporated in Texas on J
26, 1996, to be the successor to SEPCO IndustriesDXP Enterprises, Inc. and its subsidiaries emgaged in the business of distribu
maintenance, repair and operating (MRO) produdisipenent and service to industrial customers. Tloen@any is organized into thi
segments: Service Centers, Supply Chain Servid8S)and Innovative Pumping Solutions (IPS). SeeeNd for discussion of the busin
segments.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND BUSI NESS POLICIES
Basis of Presentatio

The accompanying consolidated financial statememiside the accounts of the Company and its wholiyned subsidiaries. All significe
intercompany accounts and transactions have bé&mmated in consolidation. Certain prior year amisunave been reclassified to confi
with the current year presentation.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the CompanZanadian subsidiaries are measured using loo@nmies as their functional currencies. Assets
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars atremt exchange rates, while income and expensedramslated at average exchange r
Translation gains and losses are reported in atir@prehensive income (loss) in the statementsda@ated comprehensive income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees the management to make estin
and assumptions in determining the reported amafrassets and liabilities and disclosure of cageint assets and liabilities at the date o
financial statements and the reported amounts wémges and expenses during the reporting periodhénopinion of management,
adjustments necessary in order to make the finbstiééements not misleading have been includeduaatesults could differ from tho
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company’s presentation of cash includes casivagnts. Cash equivalents are defined as gbart-investments with maturity dates of
days or less at time of purchase.

Receivables and Credit Ri

Trade receivables consist primarily of uncollateed customer obligations due under normal tradagewhich usually require payment wit
30 days of the invoice date. However, these payiteents are extended in select cases and many ceista@m not pay within stated trade tel

The Company has trade receivables from a divedsifigsstomer base located primarily in the Rocky Maim Northeastern, Midweste
Southeastern and Southwestern regions of the UMitatts, and Canada. The Company believes no is@mtifconcentration of credit ri
exists. The Company evaluates the creditworthioé#s customers' financial positions and monitacsounts on a regular basis, but gene
does not require collateral. Provisions to thewvedince for doubtful accounts are made monthly arjdsadents are made periodically

circumstances warrant) based upon management £btistate of the collectability of all such accaurthe Company writest uncollectible
trade accounts receivable when the accounts agentieed to be uncollectible. No customer represertie than 10% of consolidated sales.
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Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company is required to maximize the use of adde inputs and minimize the use of unobservaipets when measuring fair val
Generally accepted accounting principles in the. [JI3SGAAP”) establishes a fair value hierarchy based on thed Evindependent, objecti
evidence surrounding the inputs used to measur@daie. A financial instrumerg’categorization within the fair value hierarchyased upc
the lowest level of input that is significant teetfair value measurement. USGAAP prioritizes thguts into three levels that may be use
measure fair value:

Level 1
Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are quoted prices in active markets for idehassets or liabilities.
Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for whitiere are inputs other than quoted prices thabblservable for the asset or liability sucl
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesative markets; quoted prices for identical assetmbilities in markets with insufficient volur
or infrequent transactions (less active markets)modelderived valuations in which significant inputs areservable or can be deri\
principally from, or corroborated by, observablerke4 data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are unobservable inputs to the valuation ouetlogy that are significant to 1
measurement of the fair value of the assets ottitiab.

See Note 4 for further information regarding thenpany’s financial instruments.
Inventories

Inventories consist principally of finished goodsdaare priced at lower of cost or market, cost ¢palptermined using the first-in, firsti
(“FIFO") method. Reserves are provided against inventooegdtimated obsolescence based upon the agingedhventories and marl
trends.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are carried on the basisosf. Expenditures for major additions and betteitsiare capitalized. Depreciation
property and equipment is computed using the sttdiige method. Maintenance and repairs of depreciabsets are charged against ear
as incurred. Additions and improvements are capédl When properties are retired or otherwise afied of, the cost and accumul:
depreciation are removed from the accounts andsgaifosses are credited or charged to earnings.

The principal estimated useful lives used in deteimy depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 2C-39 years

Building improvement: 1C-20 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3-20 years

equipmen

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated useful
life or related lease ter

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Ass

The Company tests goodwill and other indefiniteedivintangible assets for impairment on an annusisband when events or change
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount n@ybe recoverable.. The Company assigns theiogrmalue of these intangible asset
its "reporting units" and applies the test for gaddat the reporting unit level. A reporting ungé defined as an operating segment or one
below a segment (a "component") if the componerd tsusiness and discrete information is preparet ramiewed regularly by segm
management.

The Companys goodwill impairment assessment first requireduatang qualitative factors to determine if a refpay unit's carrying valt
would more likely than not exceed its fair valuethe Company concludes, based on the qualitaggessment, that a reporting unit's carr
value would more likely than not exceed its faitueg the Company would perform a twtep quantitative test for that reporting unit. \itz
guantitative assessment is performed, the firgt &eto identify a potential impairment, and thes®l step measures the amount of
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill is deemed to bpaired if the carrying amount of a reporting iijoodwill exceeds its estimated fair va
No impairment of goodwill was required in 2012, 2G4 2010
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Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets, Excluding Goodwill

The Company tests loriyed assets or asset groups for recoverabilitammnnual basis and when events or changes imtitances indica
that their carrying amount may not be recovera@iecumstances which could trigger a review includet are not limited to: significa
decreases in the market price of the asset; stgmifiadverse changes in the business climate alfiggfors; accumulation of costs significa
in excess of the amount originally expected fordbquisition or construction of the asset; curpariod cash flow or operating losses comb
with a history of losses or a forecast of contilguiosses associated with the use of the assetcuament expectation that the asset will n
likely than not be sold or disposed significantlgfdre the end of its estimated useful life. Recabiity is assessed based on the can
amount of the asset and its fair value which isegalty determined based on the sum of the undigedurash flows expected to result from
use and the eventual disposal of the asset, asawalbecific appraisal in certain instances. Anaimpent loss is recognized when the carr
amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company uses restricted stock for shm®ed compensation programs. The Company measurggensation cost with respect to eq
instruments granted as stobksed payments to employees based upon the estifaitealue of the equity instruments at the dzftéhe gran
The cost as measured is recognized as expens¢heveeriod which an employee is required to progieievices in exchange for the award.

Revenue Recognitic

For binding agreements to fabricate tangible aswetsustomer specifications, the Company recognizeenues using the percentag:
completion method. Under this method, revenuesearegnized as costs are incurred and include esthpofits calculated on the basis of
relationship between costs incurred and total egéoh costs at completion. If at any time expectsiexceed the value of the contract
loss is recognized immediately. Revenues of apprateély $15.9 million were recognized on contrantpriocess for the year ended Decer
31, 2012. The typical time span of these contrectpproximately one to two years. At DecemberZM1,2 and 2011, $8.5 million and $
million, respectively, of unbilled costs and esttethearnings are included in accounts receivable.

For other sales, the Company recognizes revenues ah agreement is in place, the price is fixald for product passes to the custome
services have been provided and collectabilitg@&sonably assured. Revenues are recorded netsftaaes.

The Company reserves for potential customer retioased upon the historical level of returns.
Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling clahiiéed to customers as sales. Shipping and hagdharges paid to others are class
as a component of cost of sales.

Self-insured Insurance and Medical Claims

We generally retain up to $100,000 of risk for eafdim for workers compensation, general liabiléytomobile and property loss. We act
for the estimated loss on the selured portion of these claims. The accrual isistéjd quarterly based upon reported claims infdonaf he
actual cost could deviate from the recorded esémat

We generally retain up to $200,000 of risk on eawddical claim for our employees and their deperslevite accrue for the estima
outstanding balance of unpaid medical claims faremployees and their dependents. The accrualjustad monthly based on recent cla
experience. The actual claims could deviate fropemeclaims experience and be materially diffefeorh the reserve.
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The accrual for these claims at December 31, 28822811 was approximately $1.8 million and $1.6ioml| respectively.
Purchase Accountin

DXP estimates the fair value of assets, includirgpprty, machinery and equipment and their relataful lives and salvage values, intangi
and liabilities when allocating the purchase pof@n acquisition. The fair value estimates areetgyed using the best information availa
Third party valuation specialists assist in valuihg Company’s significant acquisitions.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administeaixpense

Cost of sales includes product and product relatets, inbound freight charges, internal transéstc and depreciation. Selling, general
administrative expense includes purchasing andwiagecosts, inspection costs, warehousing coggretiation and amortization. DXPgros
margins may not be comparable to those of othétiestsince some entities include all of the castated to their distribution network in ¢
of sales and others like DXP exclude a portionheke costs from gross margin, including the costsline item, such as selling, general
administrative expense.

Income Taxe

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Deferred incomeassets and liabilities are computec
differences between the financial statement andnmc tax bases of assets and liabilities. Such @efeincome tax asset and liabi
computations are based on enacted tax laws and agiglicable to periods in which the differences axpected to reverse. Valual
allowances are established to reduce deferred iadamassets to the amounts expected to be realized

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income, foreigneacy translation adjustments, unrecognized g@asses) on postretirement and o
employmentrelated plans, changes in fair value of certainvdéves, and unrealized gains and losses on cerngestments in debt and eqt
securities. The Comparg/other comprehensive (loss) income is comprisezhahges in the market value of an investment guibted marke
prices in an active market for identical instrunseauhd translation adjustments from translatingiforeubsidiaries to the reporting currency.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta»

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which requires thaasition taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return be recognized in tharftial statements when it is more likely than (het a likelihood of more than fifty perce
that the position would be sustained upon exanundaby tax authorities. A recognized tax positiothien measured at the largest amou
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likelfy leing realized upon ultimate settlement. The Canypand its subsidiaries file income
returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and vasi@ates. With few exceptions, the Company is ngdo subject to U. S. federal, state and |
tax examination by tax authorities for years ptm2007. The Company's policy is to recognize ggerelated to unrecognized tax benefi
interest expense and penalties as operating expehise Company believes that it has appropriatpatifor the income tax positions tal
and to be taken on its tax returns and that itsuats for tax liabilities are adequate for all operars based on an assessment of many f
including past experience and interpretations ida applied to the facts of each matter.

NOTE 3 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2011, the FASB issued an amendment to tievédue measurement guidance and disclosure rameints. The new requirements v
effective for the first interim or annual periodgining after December 15, 2011 and were to beiegmprospectively. DXP adopted the r
requirements in the first quarter of 2012; howevke adoption of this guidance did not have a nelteffect on its consolidated financ
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued an amendment toetgrements for presenting comprehensive income.riBw requirements were effect
for the first interim or annual period beginningeafDecember 15, 2011 and were to be applied paadisely. The standard requires o
comprehensive income to be presented in a contataiement of comprehensive income that would goenttne components of net inco
and other comprehensive income, or in a separategdnsecutive, statement following the stateménh@me. DXP elected to early ad
these new requirements effective December 31, 2011.

In September 2010, the FASB issued an accountarglatds update with new guidance on annual goodwilhirment testing. The stands
update allows an entity to first assess qualitaftiators to determine if it is more likely than ribat the fair value of a reporting unit is lesar
it's carrying amount. If based on its qualitatigse@ssment an entity concludes it is more likely that that the fair value of a reporting un
less than its carrying amount, quantitative impeinintesting is required. However, if an entity dodes otherwise, quantitative impairm
testing is not required. The standards updateféstdfe for annual and interim goodwill impairmeests performed for fiscal years beginr
after December 15, 2011, with early adoption peaditDXP elected to early adopt these new requingsneffective December 31, 2011.

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILI TIES

Authoritative guidance for financial assets andilites measured on a recurring basis appliedltiinancial assets and financial liabilities t
are being measured and reported on a fair valus.ld&ar value, as defined in the authoritativedgmice, is the price that would be receive
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in aderly transaction between market participanttshatmeasurement date. The authorit:
guidance affects the fair value measurement ohaastment with quoted market prices in an activeketafor identical instruments, whi
must be classified in one of the following categeri

Level 1 Input:

Level 1 inputs come from quoted prices (unadjusie@ytive markets for identical assets or liaigitt

Level 2 Input:

Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices thatolaservable for an asset or liability. These ispotiude: quoted prices for similar asset
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices foeidical or similar assets or liabilities in markétsit are not active; inputs other than qu
prices that are observable for the asset or ltgbiéind inputs that are derived principally fromamrroborated by observable market dat
correlation or other means.

Level 3 Input:

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability which require the Company’s own aswations.

Financial assets and liabilities are classifiedeldasn the lowest level of input that is significamtthe fair value measurement. Our assess
of the significance of a particular input to thé& faalue measurement requires judgment and maytatfe valuation of the fair value of as:
and liabilities and their placement within the fa&ue hierarchy levels.

The following table presents the changes in Levasdets for the period indicateth thousand9:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Fair value at beginning of peric $ 1,67 $ -
Investment during perio 10t 1,57
Realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in other comprehensive inco 62¢ 107
Fair value at end of period $ 2,41 $1,67¢
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During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company &iids million for an investment with quoted margeites in an active market. At Decem
31, 2011, the market value of this investment wa¥ $nillion. During 2012, the Company paid $0.1lioil for additional shares of tt
investment. At December 31, 2012, the market vafuithe investment was $2.4 million. The $0.6 millimcrease in the market value du
the year ended December 31, 2012 was includedhar somprehensive income.

NOTE 5 - INVENTORY

The carrying values of inventories are as followsthousand3:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Finished good $ 97,67 $ 93,25
Work in proces: 7,47(C 5,24¢
Inventory reservi (3,727 (4,603
$ 101,42 $ 93,90

Inventories

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The carrying values of property and equipment arfobiows (in thousands:

December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Land $ 1,86 $ 1,65
Buildings and leasehold improveme 7,37¢ 7,95¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 72,21¢ 28,75t
Less — Accumulated depreciation (22,745 (21,453
Total Property and Equipment $ 58,71 $ 16,91

Capital expenditures by segment are included ire N6t
NOTE 7 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the changes in theyizay amount of goodwill and other intangible ass#ring the year ended December 31,
2012 (in thousandy:

Other
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 101,76 $ 43,19: $ 144,95
Acquired during the ye: 44,074 30,83: 74,90t
Adjustments to prior year estimai (50) 50 -
Amortization - (10,886 (10,886
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 145,78 $ 63,18 $ 208,97
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The following table presents the changes in theyizay amount of goodwill and other intangible ass#ring the year ended December 31,
2011 (in thousands:

Other
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 84,94, $32,23t $117,17
Acquired during the ye: 15,82 17,53( 33,35
Payment of earnol 1,00¢ - 1,00(
Amortization - (6,572 (6,572
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 101,76 $43,19: $144,95!

The following table presents goodwill balance byaeable segment as of December 31, 2012 and @@1iousands)

As of December 31

2012 2011
Service Center $ 121,90 $ 77,87
Innovative Pumping Solutior 15,98( 15,98(
Supply Chain Services 7,907 7,907
Total $ 145,78 $ 101,76

The following table presents a summary of amortzabher intangible asset$n(thousands:

As of December 31, 2012 As of December 31, 2011
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount, net Amount Amortization Amount, net

Vendor

agreement $ 2,49 $ (1,081 $ 1,41 $ 2490 $ (956 $ 1,54
Customer

relationships 90,85: (30,010 60,84 64,26 (23,508 40,75¢
Non-compete

agreement 1,54] (608: 93¢ 2,61] (1,711: 90C
Total $ 94,88! $ (31,699 $ 63,18! $ 69,36! $ (26,175 $ 43,19

Other intangible assets are generally amortized stnaightine basis over their estimated useful lives. Tstingated future annual amortizat
of intangible assets for each of the next five geard thereafter are as follogiss thousands)

2013 11,747
2014 11,47:
2015 10,03¢
2016 7,73¢
2017 7,68¢
Thereaftel 14,50¢
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the followingn(thousands:

December 31

2012 2011
Line of credit $ 104,52 $ 110,82
Term loan 130,00t -
Unsecured subordinated notes payable 3,87( 2,32

quarterly installments at 5%

through November 201

Mortgage loan payable to financial - 1,751
institution, 6.25% collateralized

by real estate, payable in monthly

installments through December 2012

238,39t 114,89¢
Less: Current portion (22,057 (694
Total Long-term Debt $ 216,33 $114,20!

On July 11, 2012 DXP entered into a new creditlitoivith Wells Fargo Bank National Association, lgsuing Lender, Swingline Lender ¢
Administrative Agent for the lenders. On Decembgy 2012 the Company amended the agreement whickased the Credit Facility by $
million (the “Facility”). The Facility consists of a $130 million term loamdaa revolving credit facility that provides a $262nillion line o
credit to the Company as of December 31, 2012.

The line of credit portion of the Facility providése option of interest at LIBOR plus an applicabilargin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25%
prime plus an applicable margin from 0.25% to 1.28B&re the applicable margin is determined by tbenanys leverage ratio as defined
the Facility at the date of borrowing. Rates foe 130 million term loan component are 25 basisitgohigher than the line of cre
borrowings. Commitment fees of 0.20% to 0.40% perumn are payable on the portion of the Facilityacdty not in use at any given time
the line of credit. Commitment fees are includethésrest in the consolidated statements of income.

Primarily because the leverage ratio was higher dfte acquisition of HSE that occurred on July 2012, interest rates in effect on July
2012 were approximately 70 points higher than theye prior to the acquisition. Approximately $0.1lion of debt issuance costs associi
with the prior credit facility were expensed in théd quarter of 2012.

On December 31, 2012, the LIBOR based rate onitleeof credit portion of the Facility was LIBOR gll.75%, the prime based rate of
Facility was prime plus 0.75%, the LIBOR based m@tethe term loan portion of the Facility was LIB@Ris 2.00% and the commitment
was 0.30%. At December 31, 2012, $226.5 million asowed under the Facility at a weighted avernatgrest rate of approximately 2.1
under the LIBOR options and $8.0 million was boreawat 3.75% under the prime option. At December2®12, the Company had $10
million available for borrowing under the Facility.

The Facility expires on July 11, 2017. The Facitipntains financial covenants defining various fiicial measures and levels of these mea
with which the Company must comply. Covenant coarpgie is assessed as of each quarter end. Sullitaaitiaf the Companys assets a
pledged as collateral to secure the credit facility

The Facility’s principal financial covenants inctud

Consolidated Leverage Ratio — The Facility requites the Compang’ Consolidated Leverage Ratio, determined at tlileofreach fisci
quarter, not exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last @@ach quarter from the closing date through M&th2015 and not to exceed 3.25to 1.00"
June 30, 2015 and thereafter. The ConsolidatedrageeRatio is defined as the outstanding indebtsdd&vided by Consolidated EBITDA -
the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters mgdin or immediately prior to such date. Indebtadris defined under the Facility for finan
covenant purposes as: (a) all obligations of DXPbiarrowed money including but not limited to olaligons evidenced by bonds, debent
notes or other similar instruments; (b) obligatidnspay deferred purchase price of property orisesy (c) capital lease obligations;
obligations under conditional sale or other tig¢ention agreements relating to property purcha@dssued and outstanding letters of cr
and (f) contingent obligations for funded indebtesin At December 31, 2012, the Company’s Leverag® Ras 1.87 to 1.00.
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Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rafite-Facility requires that the Consolidated Fixdw@e Coverage Ratio on the last day of
quarter be not less than 1.25 to 1.0 with “Consiéd Fixed Charge Coverage Ratitgfined as the ratio of (a) Consolidated EBITDA tiog
period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters endingurhsdate minus capital expenditures during suclogdexcluding acquisitions) minus inco
tax expense paid minus the aggregate amount ofctest payments defined in the agreement to (b)rttezest expense paid in cash, schec
principal payments in respect of long-term debt @redcurrent portion of capital lease obligatiooassuch 12month period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its siasiveid. At December 31, 2012, the Company's Cotiatdd Fixed Charge Coverage R
was 3.10 to 1.00.

Asset Coverage Ratio —The credit facility requittesst the Asset Coverage Ratio at any time be st lean 1.0 to 1.0 withASset Coverac
Ratio” defined as the ratio of (a) the sum of 85% of mebants receivable plus 65% of net inventory totlile)aggregate outstanding amout
the revolving credit outstandings on such dateDétember 31, 2012, the Company's Asset Coverage Was 2.04 to 1.00.

Consolidated EBITDA as defined under the Facildy financial covenant purposes means, without dapibin, for any period the consolida
net income of DXP plus, to the extent deductedaleudating consolidated net income, depreciatiomprization (except to the extent that s
non-cash charges are reserved for cash charges takben in the future), nozash compensation including stock option or retstricstoc
expense, interest expense and income tax expent®xés based on income, certain ¢inge costs associated with our acquisitions, irgggr
costs, facility consolidation and closing costyesance costs and expenses andtone-compensation costs in connection with the esitipn
of HSE and any permitted acquisition, writewn of cash expenses incurred in connection vaigheixisting credit agreement and extraordi
losses less interest income and extraordinary g@ioasolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted to give foonma effect to disposals or busin
acquisitions assuming that such transaction(s)dsadrred on the first day of the period excludiigreome statement items attributable to
assets or equity interests that is subject to slighosition made during the period and includingirdome statement items attributable
property or equity interests of such acquisitioasmtted under the Facility.

The following table sets forth the computationiué t everage Ratio as of December 31, 20ihZlfousands, except for ratids

For the Twelve Months ended Leverage
December 31, 2012 Ratio
Income before taxe $ 85,00!
Interest expens 5,56(
Depreciation and amortizatic 18,08:
Stock compensation exper 1,95¢
Pro forma acquisition EBITD; 16,54:
Other adjustments 913
(A) Defined EBITDA $ 128,06
As of December 31, 201

Total lon¢-term deb $ 238,39
Letters of credit outstanding 47€
(B) Defined indebtedness $ 238,87,
Leverage Ratio (B)/(A) 1.87
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The maturities of long-term debt under the Compsgtm loan for the next five years and thereateras follows {n thousand3:

2013 22,057
2014 25,49
2015 31,94
2016 34,37¢
2017 124,52!
Thereaftel -

NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES
The components of income before income taxes af@laws (in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Domestic $ 84,34¢ $ 51,99! $32,13:
Foreign 66C - -
Total income before taxes $ 85,00 $51,99! $ 32,13.

The provision for income taxes consists of theolwlhg (in thousand$:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Current-
Federa $ 27,39: $ 15,40: $ 7,95:
State 4,43¢ 2,731 1,44¢
Foreign 963 - -
32,79 18,13: 9,39¢
Deferred-
Federa 1,83¢ 2,081 2,91¢
State 14¢€ 34t 43¢
Foreign (751 - -
1,23( 2,42¢ 3,35¢

$ 34,02 $ 20,55! $12,75:

The difference between income taxes computed afetlieral statutory income tax rate (35%) and ttavigion for income taxes is as follo
(in thousands:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Income taxes computed at federal statt
rate $ 29,75! $18,19¢ $ 11,24
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2,91 1,99¢ 1,22¢
Other, primarily non-tax deductible item 1,354 361 28(

$ 34,02 $20,55¢ $ 12,75:
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The net current and noncurrent components of deféncome tax balances are as follovrsthousand$y:

December 31

2012 2011
Net current asse $ 5,18 $ 4,53¢
Net nor-current assel - 1,58¢
Net nor-current liabilities (16,448 -
Net assets (liabilities $ (11,266 $6,12°

Deferred tax liabilities and assets were compridfettie following (in thousands:

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Goodwill $ 227 $ 3,57
Allowance for doubtful accoun 2,40¢ 2,077
Inventories 1,80¢ 1,707
Accruals 84z 88¢
Other 34z 22¢
Total deferred tax asse 7,66¢ 8,471
Less valuation allowance - -
Total deferred tax assets, net of value 7,66¢ 8,471
allowance
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (9,232 (786,
Property and equipme (8,430 (1,421
Unremitted foreign earning (577 -
Cumulative translation adjustme (298 -
Other (394 (143
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ (11,266 $ 6,12

NOTE 10 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Restricted Stoc

Under the restricted stock plan approved by ouredt@ders (the “Restricted Stock Plantirectors, consultants and employees ma
awarded shares of DX®tommon stock. The shares of restricted stockiggaio employees and that are outstanding as oérleer 31, 201
vest in accordance with one of the following vegtithedules: 100% one year after date of grang¥8&ach year for three years after da
grant; 20% each year for five years after the gdane; or 10% each year for ten years after thetgtate. The Restricted Stock Plan prov
that on each July 1 during the term of the plarheaanemployee director of DXP will be granted the numbgwhole shares calculated
dividing $75 thousand by the closing price of teencnon stock on such July 1. The shares of redtristieck granted to noemployee directo
of DXP vest one year after the grant date. Thevialine of restricted stock awards is measured baged the closing prices of DX®tommo
stock on the grant dates and is recognized as awafien expense over the vesting period of the dsvadnce restricted stock vests,
shares of the Company’s stock are issued.

The following table provides certain informatiorgaeding the shares authorized and outstanding uhdeRestricted Stock Plan at Decen
31, 2012:

Number of shares authoriz

for grants 800,00(
Number of shares grant (688,371
Number of shares forfeite 79,99¢
Number of shares availakt

for future grants 191,62
Weighted-average grant

price of granted shart $ 19.6:
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Changes in restricted stock for the twelve montided December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Number of Weighted

Shares Average
Grant Price

Nonr-vested at December 228,59: $21.10
2011
Granted 76,41 $38.99
Forfeited (19,260  $32.68
Vested (75,419  $20.30
Nonr-vested at December
2012 _ 210,330 $26.85

Compensation expense, associated with restrictaxk,stecognized in the years ended December 312,28111 and 2010 was $2.0 milli
$1.3 million, and $1.0 million, respectively. Re&dtincome tax benefits recognized in earnings ényihars ended December 31, 2012, 2
and 2010 were approximately $0.8 million, $0.5 imill and $0.4 million, respectively. Unrecognizeasimpensation expense under
Restricted Stock Plan at December 31, 2012 andrbieee31, 2011 was $4.6 million and $4.1 milliorspectively. As of December 31, 20

the weighted average period over which the unreizegrcompensation expense is expected to be rexamjid 28.2 months.
Stock Options

The DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock @pEtan (the “Plan”), the DXP Enterprises, Inc. Léehgrm Incentive Plan and the D.
Enterprises, Inc. Director Stock Option Plan auttest the grant of options to purchase 1,800,00®,08® and 400,000 shares of
Company’s common stock, respectively. In accordanith these stock option plans that were approvgdhe Companys shareholder
options were granted to key personnel for the mselof shares of the Compasigommon stock at prices not less than the faiketaalue @
the shares on the dates of grant. Most optionsdcoelexercised not earlier than 12 months nor thtem 10 years from the date of grant.
future grants will be made under these stock ogplans. There was no activity under the Plan dug@g2 or 2011. Activity during 2010 w
respect to the stock options follows:

Weighted
Options Average  Aggregate
Price Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Per Share Price Value
Outstanding and exercisa
at $ 1.25
December 31, 20C 50,00( $3.3¢ $ 2.5( $ 529,00
Exercised during 2010 $ 1.25
(50,000 $3.3¢ $ 2.5( $ 489,00

Outstanding and exercisa
at
December 31, 201 - - - -

Cash received from stock options exercised durdi2and 2011 and 2010 was zero, zero, and $0.iomitespectively.

During 2010, employees and directors of DXP exertisongualified stock options. DXP received a tax deductfor the amount of ti
difference between the exercise price and thenfaitket value of the shares recognized as inconthebindividuals exercising the options. -
after tax benefit of the tax deduction is accouritedis an increase in paid-in capital.

NOTE 11 - EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share is computed based on tedigiverage shares outstanding and excludes @ilségurities. Diluted earnings per sl
is computed including the impacts of all potenyialilutive securities.
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The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share for the peiimtisated (n thousands, except per share
data):

December 31

2012 2011 2010
Basic:
Weighted average shares
outstandinc 14,37« 14,30: 13,82:
Net income $ 50,98! $ 31,43 $ 19,38
Convertible preferred stock
dividend (90) (90) (90)
Net income attributable 1 _
common shareholde __$ 5089 _$ 3134 __$ 1929
Per Share amou $ 3.5¢ $ 2.1¢ $ 1.4(
Diluted:
Weighted average shares
outstanding 14,37: 14,30: 13,82:
Net effect of dilutive stoc
options from treasury stock
method - - 7
Assumed conversion of
convertible note - - 152
Assumed conversion of
convertible
preferred stocl 84C 84( 84C
Total dilutive share 15,21 15,14 14.82:
Net income attributable t
common shareholde $ 50,89! $ 31,34 $ 19,29:
Interest on convertible note
net of income taxe - - 142
Convertible preferred stock
dividend 9C 9C 9C
Net income for diluted .
earnings per Sha $ 50,98I $ 31,43 $ 19,52.
Per Share amou $ 33! $ 203 $ 13:

NOTE 12 - BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

All of the Companys acquisitions have been accounted for using thhehpse method of accounting. Revenues and expefisks acquire
businesses have been included in the accompangimgplidated financial statements beginning on thespective dates of acquisition. -
allocation of purchase price to the acquired asmedsliabilities is based on estimates of fair nrearkalue and may be prospectively revise
and when additional information the Company is &wgiconcerning certain asset and liability valoas is obtained, provided that s
information is received no later than one yearrdfie date of acquisition.

During 2011 the Company paid $1.0 million in cog#nt purchase price related to the acquisitiomdfan Fire & Safety in 2007.

On October 10, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallyoélthe assets of Kenneth Crosby (KC). DXP acquited business to expand DX
geographic presence in the Eastern U.S. and stremd@XP's metal working offering. DXP paid approaiely $15.6 million for KC, whic
was borrowed under our existing credit facility.d8@will of $5.8 million was recognized for this agsjtion and is calculated as the exces
the consideration transferred over the net assetsgnized and represents the future economic liersfsing from other assets acquired
could not be individually identified and separatedgognized. It specifically includes the expectgdergies and other benefits that we be
will result from combining the operations of KC tvithe operations of DXP and any intangible asseas tlo not qualify for separ:
recognition such as the assembled workforce. Tlehgil associated with this acquisition is includadboth the Service Centers segment
Supply Chain Services segment.

On December 30, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallpfaihe assets of C.W. Rod Tool Company ("CW Ro@®XP acquired this business
strengthen DXP's metal working offering. DXP pajgbeximately $1.1 million of DXP's common stock (Bb4 shares) and approxima
$41.7 million in cash for CW Rod, which was borraladuring 2011 and 2012 under our credit facilithe41.7 million of cash paid for C
Rod includes $36.7 million paid in the form of chkeavhich did not clear our bank until 2012. Goodiwfl$10 million was recognized for ti
acquisition and is calculated as the excess ottimsideration transferred over the net assets nimeg) and represents the future econi
benefits arising from other assets acquired thaidcoot be individually identified and separateBcognized. It specifically includes -
expected synergies and other benefits that weueligll result from combining the operations of GRéd with the operations of DXP and i



intangible assets that do not qualify for separatmgnition such as the assembled workforce. Allhef goodwill is included in the Serv
Centers segment.
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On January 31, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallypfaithe assets of Mid-Continent Safety ("M@ibntinent”). DXP acquired this busines:
expand DXP's geographic presence in the MidwesieBn and strengthen DXP's safety products offeldP paid approximately $3.7 millic
for Mid-Continent, which was borrowed under our existingddrfacility. Goodwill of $1.2 million was recogred for this acquisition and
calculated as the excess of the considerationfarard over the net assets recognized and repeeEnfuture economic benefits arising fi
other assets acquired that could not be indivigud#ntified and separately recognized. It speaificincludes the expected synergies and «
benefits that we believe will result from combinitige operations of Mi€Gontinent with the operations of DXP and any inthlegassets that
not qualify for separate recognition such as ttserbled workforce. All of the goodwill is includédthe Service Centers segment.

On February 29, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of Pump & Power Equipment, Incufip & Power"). DXP acquired tf
business to expand DXP's geographic presence iMithwestern U.S. and strengthen DXP's municipal pyproducts and services offeri
DXP paid approximately $1.9 million for Pump & Pawehich was borrowed under our existing credit lfgci Goodwill of $0.7 million wa
recognized for this acquisition and is calculatedte excess of the consideration transferred thvenet assets recognized and represen
future economic benefits arising from other asseguired that could not be individually identifiadd separately recognized. It specific
includes the expected synergies and other bertbfiiiswe believe will result from combining the opions of Pump & Power with t
operations of DXP and any intangible assets thatalajualify for separate recognition such as $sembled workforce. All of the goodwill
included in the Service Centers segment.

On April 2, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Aledtng. ("Aledco™). Aledco is focused on servicingstamers in the oil and gas, water
waste water treatment, pharmaceutical and induistgakets. DXP paid approximately $8.1 million féledco which was borrowed under
existing credit facility. Goodwill of $3.4 milliorwas recognized for this acquisition and is caladaas the excess of the consider:
transferred over the net assets recognized an@ésemis the future economic benefits arising frohewotssets acquired that could no
individually identified and separately recognizéidspecifically includes the expected synergies atiter benefits that we believe will res
from combining the operations of Aledco with theeggtions of DXP and any intangible assets thatatajnalify for separate recognition si
as the assembled workforce. None of the estimatediwill is expected to be tax deductible. All oetgoodwill is included in the Servi
Centers segment.

On May 1, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition oflustrial Paramedic Services through its wholly osvrsaibsidiary, DXP Cana
Enterprises Ltd. Industrial Paramedic Servicespsaaider of industrial medical and safety servite@dustrial customers operating in ren
locations and large facilities in western CanaddPDacquired this business to expand DXP's geogramtéisence into Canada and to ex|
our safety services offering. Industrial Parame®kiecvices is headquartered in Calgary, Alberta getaies out of three locations in Calg
Nisku and Dawson Creek. The $25.3 million purchasee was financed with $20.6 million of borrowingsder DXP's existing credit facili
$2.5 million of promissory notes bearing a 5% iagtrate and 19,685 shares of DXP common stockn&tstd goodwill of $12.1 million wi
recognized for this acquisition and is calculatedtee excess of the consideration transferred thvenet assets recognized and represen
future economic benefits arising from other asseguired that could not be individually identifiadd separately recognized. It specific
includes the expected synergies and other bertbfitswe believe will result from combining the ogons of Industrial Paramedic Servi
with the operations of DXP and any intangible as#eat do not qualify for separate recognition sashhe assembled workforce. None of
estimated goodwill is expected to be tax deductileof the goodwill is included in the Service @ers segment.

On May 31, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Austid ®enholm Industrial Sales Alberta, Inc. (“ADIDXP acquired this business to exp
DXP's geographic presence in Western Canada aedgsiten DXP's pump products and services offedd§P paid approximately $2
million for ADI which was borrowed under our exiggi credit facility. Goodwill of $0.3 million was cegnized for this acquisition and
calculated as the excess of the considerationferand over the net assets recognized and repseienfuture economic benefits arising fi
other assets acquired that could not be indivigud#ntified and separately recognized. It speaificincludes the expected synergies and «
benefits that we believe will result from combinitite operations of ADI with the operations of DXRdaany intangible assets that do
qualify for separate recognition such as the astminborkforce. None of the estimated goodwill igpeated to be tax deductible. All of
estimated goodwill is included in the Service Centegment.
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On July 11, 2012, DXP completed the acquisitioRBE Integrated Ltd. ISE"). DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd., acquired athefoutstandir
common shares of HSE by way of a plan of arrangémeder theBusiness Corporations A¢Alberta) (the "Arrangement”). Pursuant to
Arrangement, HSE shareholders received CDN $1.8&éh per each common share of HSE held. Thettatedaction value is approximat
$85 million, including approximately $4 million thebt and approximately $3 million in transactiostso The purchase price was financed
borrowings under DXR new $325 million credit facility. DXP acquired HSo expand our industrial health and safety sesvioffering
Estimated goodwill of $25.8 million was recogniZed this acquisition. The estimate of goodwill this acquisition is calculated as the ex
of the consideration transferred over the net asgebgnized and represents the future economigfitearising from other assets acquired
could not be individually identified and separatedgognized. It specifically includes the expecdgdergies and other benefits that we be
will result from combining the operations of thesempanies with the operations of DXP and any intaagassets that do not qualify
separate recognition such as the assembled woekfblane of the estimated goodwill is expected tdaxedeductible All of the goodwill is
included in the Service Centers Segment.

On October 1, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallyofihe assets of Jerzy Supply, Inc. (“JerzyDXP acquired this business to expand D.
geographic presence in the Southern U.S. and stemd>XP's industrial and hydraulic hoses offerib(P paid approximately $5.3 milli
for Jerzy which was borrowed under our existinglitriacility. No goodwill was recognized on the phase.

The value assigned to the noompete agreements and customer relationshipsuindss acquisitions were determined by discourttie
estimated cash flows associated with wompete agreements and customer relationships the afate the acquisition was consummated
estimated cash flows were based on estimated regemet of operating expenses and net of capitabebdor assets that contribute to
projected cash flow from these assets. The prajemtgenues and operating expenses were estimasedl s management estimates.
capital charges for assets that contribute to ptegecash flow were based on the estimated fairevaf those assets. Discount rates of 17.(
28.2% were deemed appropriate for valuing thesetasmnd were based on the risks associated withedpective cash flows taking il
consideration the acquired company’s weighted @ecast of capital.

DXP has not completed appraisals of intangiblepraperty and equipment for certain acquisitions gleted in 2012. DXP has me
preliminary estimates for purposes of this disctesu

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012nbssiacquisitions that occurred during 2012 and 20htributed sales of $204.8 milli
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012néssiacquisitions that occurred during 2012 and 20btributed earnings before taxe
approximately $5.8 million.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asdudnegng 2012 and 2011 in connection with
the acquisitions described abovie (housands:

Cash $ 12,37
Accounts Receivable, n 50,64¢
Inventory 17,80¢
Property and equipme 36,30:
Goodwill and intangible 108,84.
Other assets 2,83¢
Assets acquired 228,81:
Current liabilities assume (32,166
Non-current liabilities (15,296
assume

Net assets acquired $ 181,34

The pro forma unaudited results of operations tier Company on a consolidated basis for the twelwaths ended December 31, 2012
2011, assuming the acquisition of businesses cdatplim 2012 and 2011 were consummated as of JariyaPPll are as follows if
thousands, except per share data

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Net sales $
1,177,091 $ 1,062,54(
Net income $ 54,03: $ 41,35¢
Per share dat
Basic earning $ 3.7¢ $ 2.8¢
Diluted earning: $ 3.5t $ 272

The pro forma unaudited results of operations fier Company on a consolidated basis for the yeadtede®ecember 31, 2010 and 2(
assuming the acquisitions of businesses complet@11 were consummated as of January 1, 2010M®l{dn thousands, except per sh
data):

Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Net sales $ 903,241 $ 778,26
Net income $ 35,51 $ 22,89
Per share dat
Basic earning $ 2.4¢ $ 1.6t
Diluted earning: $ 2.3t $ 1.5¢

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases equipment, automobiles ancedizilities under various operating leases. Theréuminimum rental commitments as
December 31, 2012, for non-cancelable leases dmlass (in thousands:

2013 $17,90:
2014 14,97
2015 10,95¢
2016 8,10:
2017 5,02¢
Thereaftel 8,721

Rental expense for operating leases was $19.20mil$14.2 million and $12.5 million for the yearsded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2
respectively.

The Company’s commitments related to long-term @ebtdiscussed in Note 8.
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From time to time, the Company is a party to vasitegal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowkéusiness. While DXP is unable
predict the outcome of these lawsuits, it beliethed the ultimate resolution will not have, eithiedividually or in the aggregate, a mate
adverse effect on DXP’s consolidated financial posj cash flows, or results of operations.

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company offers a 401(K) plan which is eligitdesubstantially all employees. During 2012, 20ad part of 2010, the Company electe
match employee contributions at a rate of 50 peratup to 4 percent of salary deferral. During 2@8e Company stopped matching emplc
contributions. During 2010 the Company resumed hiagcof employee contributions. The Company comteld $1.9 million, $1.5 milliol
and $0.5 million to the 401(K) plan in the yearslesh December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively

NOTE 15- OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income generally representhaliges in shareholdeesjuity during the period, except those resultimgrfiinvestmen
by, or distributions to, shareholders. During 2ah@ Company had other comprehensive income relitechanges in interest rates
connection with an interest rate swap. At Deceniei2012 and 2011, accumulated derivative (losg)rite, net of income tax was nil.

During 2012, 2011, and 2010 the Company had netratbmprehensive income of $0.4 million, $0.1 railliand nil, respectively, related
changes in the market value of an investment withted market prices in an active market for idextticstruments.

During 2012, the Company acquired three entitias tiperate in Canada. These Canadian entities amaifancial data in Canadian doll:
Upon consolidation, the Company translates thenfiied data from these foreign subsidiaries into .UdBllars and records cumulat
translation adjustments in other comprehensivenreorhe Company recorded $0.6 million in transtatoljustments in other comprehen
income during the year ended December 31, 2012.

NOTE 16 — SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL REPORTING

The Companys reportable business segments are: Service Cehtamvative Pumping Solutions and Supply Chainviges. The Servic
Centers segment is engaged in providing maintenaB® products, equipment and integrated servicesding logistics capabilities,
industrial customers. The Service Centers segmemtiges a wide range of MRO products in the rotateguipment, bearing, pov
transmission, hose, fluid power, metal working,tdéaer, industrial supply, safety products and gafsrvices categories. The Innova
Pumping Solutions segment fabricates and assemb&#smmade pump packages. The Supply Chain Services segnamages all or part o
customer's supply chain, including warehouse anentory management.

The high degree of integration of the Compangperations necessitates the use of a substantrder of allocations and apportionments ir
determination of business segment information.sSate shown net of intersegment eliminations.
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Business Segmented Financial Informat
The following table sets out financial informatimating the Company’s segmenis thousands:

Innovative Supply

Service Pumping Chain
Years Ended December 3. Centers Solutions Services Total
2012
Sales $779,03! $161,83. $156,23! $1,097,11
Operating income for
reportable segmen 88,92 32,09¢ 12,49t 133,51¢
Identifiable assets at year ¢ 440,27: 56,98: 50,51¢ 547,76¢
Capital expenditure 4,82¢ 261 - 5,09(
Depreciatior 5,73¢ 30¢€ 17t 6,21°¢
Amortization 8,79¢ 663 1,42¢ 10,88¢
Interest expens 3,701 1,24: 61€ 5,56(
2011
Sales $560,23: $102,30! $144,46° $807,00!
Operating income for
reportable segmen 64,49: 16,92( 8,45¢ 89,86¢
Identifiable assets at year ¢ 294,41( 43,63t 56,05¢ 394,10
Capital expenditure 1,25¢ 31C 73 1,641
Depreciatior 2,09( 32¢ 27¢€ 2,692
Amortization 4,72¢ 67t 1,172 6,572
Interest expens 2,07: 98¢ 45¢ 3,51¢
2010
Sales $452,71! $ 77,02 $126,45! $656,20:
Operating income for
reportable segmen 50,54¢ 10,33t 7,12( 68,00¢
Identifiable assets at year ¢ 240,06¢ 25,40¢ 45,81 311,28t
Capital expenditure 1,07t 17 92 1,18¢
Depreciatior 2,42¢ 36¢ 38¢ 3,18:
Amortization 4,05¢ 604 1,16¢ 5,82¢
Interest expens 4,11¢ 70C 39z 5,20¢
Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Operating income for $ 133,51 $ 89,861 $ 68,00«

reportable segmen

Adjustments for

Amortization of intangible 10,88¢ 6,572 5,82¢

Corporate and other 32,11( 27,80¢ 25,08¢

expense, net

Total operating income 90,52 55,48¢ 37,09:

Interest expens 5,56( 3,51¢ 5,20¢

Other expenses (income), (47) (28) (249

Income before income taxe  $ 85,00 $51,99! $ 32,13:

The Company had capital expenditures at Corporia$9.® million, $2.5 million, and zero for the ysaended December 31, 2012, 2011,
2010, respectively. The Company had identifiabketsat Corporate of $22 million, $11.2 millionde$9.3 million as of December 31, 20
2011, and 2010, respectively. Corporate depreciatias $1.0 million, $0.8 million, and $0.6 millidar the years ended December 31, 2
2011, and 2010, respectively.
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Geographical Information

Revenues are presented in geographic area badedation of the facility shipping products or prdirig services. Londjved assets are bas
on physical locations and are comprised of thebnek value of property.

The Company’s revenues and property and equipmegédbgraphical location are as follgim thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Revenue
United State:  $1,039,71 $ 807,00! $ 656,20;
Canada 57,39¢ - -
Total $1,097,11 $ 807,00! $ 656,20;

As of December 31

2012 2011
Property and Equipment, r
United State: $ 31,33 $ 16,91
Canada 27,37¢ -
Total $58,71. $ 16,91

NOTE 17 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudite d)

Summarized quarterly financial information for tears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010ddl@ss (in millions, except per sha
data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2012

Sales $ 252. $ 261.¢ $ 289.¢ $ 293.(
Gross profit 71.t 76.€ 83.t 87.t
Net income 11.¢€ 12.2 13.1 14.1
Earnings per shar- basic $ 0.8 $ 0.8¢ $0.9: $ 0.9¢
Earnings per shar diluted $0.77 $ 0.8( $ 0.8¢ $0.9:
2011

Sales $ 183.: $197. $ 207.¢ $218.:
Gross profit 52.4 57.2 59.t 62.€
Net income 6.2 7.€ 8.% 9.2
Earnings per shar- basic $ 0.4« $ 0.5: $ 0.5¢ $ 0.6¢
Earnings per shar diluted $0.4: $ 0.5( $ 0.5t $ 0.6
2010

Sales $147.( $167.: $172.. $169.
Gross profit 42.C 47.¢ 48.¢ 49.€
Net income 3.€ 4.€ 5.8 5.¢
Earnings per shar basic $0.27 $0.3¢ $ 0.3¢ $0.4!
Earnings per shar diluted $ 0.2¢ $0.3] $ 0.3¢ $0.3¢

The sum of the individual quarterly earnings pearstamounts may not agree with year-to-date easmprgshare as each quaderbmputatio
is based on the weighted average number of shatetanding during the quarter, the weighted avesigek price during the quarter and
dilutive effects of the stock options and restidgics¢ock in each quarter.
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NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have evaluated subsequent events through tleetlatconsolidated financial statements were filgth the Securities and Exchat
Commission. There were no subsequent events thaireel recognition for disclosure.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéwnting and Financial Disclosure
None.
ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

DXP carried out an evaluation, under the supermisiod with the participation of its managementluding the Chief Executive Officer and"
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness adDafcember 31, 2012, of the design and operatiddXd?’'s disclosure controls and procedi
pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and &dbisclosure controls and procedures are theralsrdnd other procedures of DXP that
designed to ensure that information required talibelosed by DXP in the reports that it files obsits under the Securities Exchange A«
1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Ad$’yecorded, processed, summarized and reportédinvthe time periods specified in the rules
forms of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commiséliee “Commission”)Disclosure controls and procedures include, witHouitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure thatniaftion required to be disclosed by DXP in theorepthat it files or submits under
Exchange Act, is accumulated and communicatedetdsuers management, including its principal executive pndcipal financial officer:
or persons performing similar functions, as apgederto allow timely decisions regarding requirésctbsure. Based upon that evaluation
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial io&r concluded that DXB’disclosure controls and procedures were effeetsvef the end
the period covered by this Report.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(A) Management’'s Annual Report on Intéi@antrol Over Financial Reporting

Management’'s report on the Companynternal control over financial reporting is imded on page 37 of this Report under
heading Manageme's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repuayt

The effectiveness of our internal control over [icial reporting at December 31, 2012 has been edidiy Hein & Associates LL
the independent registered public accounting finat &ilso audited our financial statements. Theioris included on page 36 of t
Report under the heading Report of Independentd®agid Public Accounting Firm on Internal ContreéoFinancial Reporting

(B) Changes in Internal Control over Fical Reporting
None

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae
The information required by this item will be indied in our Definitive Proxy statement for the 20r#hual Meeting of Shareholders that
will file with the SEC within 120 days of the end the fiscal year to which this Report relates (tieoxy Statement”Jand is herek
incorporated by reference thereto.
ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrby reference.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aidinagement and Related Shareholder Matters
The information required by this item will be indled in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrhy reference.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrby reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item will be indled in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrhay reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents included in this report:

1. Financial Statements (included under Item 8):

DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries Page

Reports of Independent Registered Pt 37
Accounting Firm

Management Report on Internal Contr 39
Consolidated Balance She 40
Consolidated Statements of Income 41
Comprehensive Incorr

Consolidated Statements of Sharehol 42
Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 43
Notes to Consolidated Financ 44
Statement:

2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule I~ Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

All other schedules have been omitted since theired| information is not significant or is includéd the Consolidated Financ
Statements or notes thereto or is not applicable.

3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieth the Commission.

Exhibit

No. Description

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amenr(@ezbrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thmmpanys Registration Statement
Form &8 (Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhib# ® the Company's Registration Statement on F&n(Reg. No. 333:0021), filec
with the Commission on August 12, 199

3.3 Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of DXP Enterprises, Ifiecorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Camgs Current Report
Form &K, filed with the Commission on July 28, 201

4.1 Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Reafion Statement on Form &-
(Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

4.2 See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions of the Company's tRtesl Articles of Incorporation, as amended, dafinthe rights of securi
holders.

4.3 See Exhibit 3.2 for provisions of the Company'saByd defining the rights of security holde

4.4 Form of Senior Debt Indenture of DXP Entemmisinc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit thzhe Company Registratio
Statement on Form-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201
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4.5

+10.1

+10.2

+10.3

+10.4

+10.5

+10.6

+10.7

+10.8

+10.9

+10.10

+10.11

+10.12

+10.13

Form of Subordinated Debt Indenture of DXPefmtises, Inc. (incorporated by reference to ExHil8 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201

DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock OptioanP{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te tbompany
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998dfilith the Commission on August 16, 19¢

DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 N&mployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdrbference to Exhibit 10.2 to 1
Company's Quarterly Report on Form QOfor the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998 fivith the Commission ¢
August 16, 199¢

DXP Enterprises, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan,aasended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4he Company
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!

Amendment Number One to DXP Enterprises, NanEmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference t
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on FatK for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003dfildth the
Commission on March 11, 200«

Employment Agreement dated effective as of Janugry2004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and DavidLile
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to thempany’s Annual Report on Form ¥Ofor the fiscal year end
December 31, 2003, filed with the Commission ondfak1, 2004)

Employment Agreement dated effective as of Jur0@4, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Mac McChiiineorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QardytReport on Form 1@ for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
filed with the Commission on May 6, 200

Amendment Number One to DXP Enterprises, Inc. 188fployee Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibi
10.10 to the Company’s Annual Report on FornKlfdr the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004d filéth the Commissic
on March 30, 2005

Summary Description of Director Fees (incogped by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Compaynnual Report on For
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004d filéth the Commission on March 30, 200

Summary Description of Executive Officer B&onus Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl2 to the Company’
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004d filéth the Commission on March 30, 200

Amendment Number Two to DXP Enterprises, MonEmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdrdference t
Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Annual Report onrrd0K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004dfikdth the
Commission on March 30, 200!

DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted StBtn (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.@4the Company Annua
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 dfivith the Commission on March 10, 20(

Amendment Number One to Employment Agreement deffttive as of January 1, 2004, between DXP Entag, Inc
and David R. Little (incorporated by reference thibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&i, filed with the
Commission on July 26, 200¢

Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005triRésd Stock Plan (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.2 to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on July 26, 200
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10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

*10.27

Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises,dad?urchaser, Precision Industries, Inc., aadéfing stockholde
dated August 19, 2007, (incorporated by referendéxhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report @nnfr 8K, filed with
the Commission on August 21, 200

Asset Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises,dadurchaser, Lone Wolf Rental, LLC, Indian FEinel Safety, Inc
and the other parties named therein dated Octo®ePd07, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1thithe Company
Current Report on Formr-K, filed with the Commission on October 22, 20(

Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises,dad?urchaser, Vertex Corporate Holdings, lhe stockholders of Vert
Corporate Holdings, Inc. and Waterm¥ertex Enterprises, LLC, dated August 28, 2008;diporated by reference to Exhibit 1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on August 29, 200

Amendment Number Two to Employment Agreement daféettive January 1, 2004 between DXP Enterprises,and David F
Little (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10dlthe Company’s Current Report on ForrK 8i{ed with the Commission on M:
22, 2009)

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 1, 20dtereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired the aseétQuadna, In
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1&ltie Company’s Current Report on ForniK 8filed with the Securities ai
Exchange Commission on April 5, 201

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Novemb&02®, whereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired tisetasof D&F Distributor:
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhil@itl1to the Company’s Current Report on Forid,8iled with the Securities ai
Exchange Commission on November 23, 20

Amendment Number One to Employment Agreement dafiéective June 1, 2004 between DXP Enterprises, &md Ma
McConnell (incorporated by reference to Exhibitllth the Company's Current Report on Forid Bled with the Commission ¢
May 9, 2011)

David Little Equity Incentive Program dated May 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2he Company's Curre
Report on Form-K filed with the Commission on May 9, 201:

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of October(d, 2vhereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired thetassf Kenneth Crosl
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to @@mpany’s Annual Report on Form K0filed with the Commission on March
2012).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb&03Q, whereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired tlsetasof C.W. Rod To
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1a@the Company’s Annual Report on FormK @ied with the Commission ¢
March 9, 2012)

Arrangement Agreement, dated as of April 30, 204RBereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. agreed to acquireofathe shares of HE
Integrated Ltd., (incorporated by reference to Bithil0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on ForrK,8filed with the
Commission on May 1, 2012

Schedule A to the Arrangement Agreement dated Afjl2012 between HSE Integrated Ltd., DXP Canauterprises Ltd. ar
DXP Enterprises, Inc., Plan of Arrangement undectiSe 193 of the Business Corporations Act (Albp(@mended as of a
effective June 28, 2012) (incorporated by refereiacExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current ReportForm 8K, filed with the
Commission on July 13, 201:

Credit Agreement by and among DXP Enterprises, b US Borrower, DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd.,@sa@ian Borrower, al
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Issuirgder, Swingline Lender and Administrative Agemt the Lenders, dated as
July 11, 2012 (incorporated by reference to ExHibit3 to the Company’s Current Report on Forig, 8led with the Commissic
on July 13, 2012

First Amendment to the Credit Agreement and Incraimdncrease Agreement dated as of December 3P, B and among DX

Enterprises, Inc., as US Borrower, DXP Canada priters Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, and Wells FaBgmk, Natione
Association, as Issuing Lender, Swingline Lendet Administrative Agent for the Lende!
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18.1 Letter of Independent Registered Public Accounttimgn Regarding Change in Accounting Principle (irpmrated by reference
Exhibit 18.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report oorrir 10Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 200Rdfiwith the
Commission on May 12, 200¢

*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Compar

*23.1 Consent of Hein & Associates LLP, Independent Reggsl Public Accounting Firn

*31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutao Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc
*31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 15-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc
*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer muant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant 86306 of the Sarban&3xley

Act of 2002, as amende

*32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pguant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant tio8e306 of the Sarban&3xley
Act of 2002, as amende

101** Interactive Data File

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed withs Annual Report on Form 10- All exhibits not so designated are incorporatsy
reference to a prior filing with the Commissionilagicated.

*x Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulationTSthese interactive data files are deemed nal flepart of a registration statement prospe
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Secur#igtsof 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934 and otherwise
not subject to liability under these sectia

+ Indicates a management contract or compensalgnagp arrangement.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any sharehaderequesting a copy of any of the exhibits tis Report on upon payment to
Company of the reasonable costs incurred by thepaagnin furnishing any such exhibit.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PuBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing staisdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolida
financial statements of DXP Enterprises, Inc. ants8liaries included in this Form ¥0and have issued our report thereon dated Marg
2013. Our audits were made for the purpose of iftgran opinion on the basic financial statemerkeriaas a whole. The financial staten
schedule listed in Item 15 herein (Schedule II-\dikhn and Qualifying Accounts) is the responsipilif the Company management and
presented for the purpose of complying with the usdes and Exchange Commissientules and is not part of the basic finar
statements. The financial statement schedule éas subjected to the auditing procedures appligheimudits of the basic financial statem
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all maténiespects with the financial data required te&keforth therein in relation to the basic finat
statements taken as a whole.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2013

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(in thousand:)
Balance at Charged ta Charged to Balance
Beginning  Cost and Other At End
Description of Year Expense:  Accounts Deductions  of Year
Year ended December 31,
2012
Deducted from assets $ 6,20: $ 1,28 $ 45 $ (735)1 $ 7,20«
accounts
Allowance for doubtful
accounts
Year ended December 31,
2011
Deducted from assets $ 3,54( $ 3,10: $ 19¢ $ (632)1 $ 6,20:
accounts
Allowance for doubtful
accounts
Year ended December 31,
2010
Deducted from assets $ 3,00t $ 67¢ $ - $ (145)1 $ 3,54(
accounts
Allowance for doubtful
accounts

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of reeoies.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repoi

SIGNATURES

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Dated: March 11, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpihe following persons on behalf of

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. (Registrant)

By: /s/ DAVID R. LITTLE

David R. Little

Chairman of the Board, President an@fdxecutive Officer

registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted:

NAME TITLE DATE
/s/David R. Little Chairman of the Board, Presiden March 11,
2013
David R. Little Chief Executive Officer ar
Director
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/IMac McConnell  Senior Vice President/Finance ar March 11,
2013
Mac McConnel Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounti
Officer)
/s/Cletus Davis Director March 11,
2013
Cletus Davis
/s/Timothy P. Halter Director March 11,
2013
Timothy P. Halte
/s/Kenneth H. Miller Director March 11,
2013

Kenneth H. Miller
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CREDIT AGREEMENT
AND INCREMENTAL INCREASE AGREEMENT

Dated as of December 31, 2012

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CREDIT AGREEMENT AND INREMENTAL INCREASE AGREEMENT (this *
Amendment’) is by and among DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., a Texaporation (“_US Borrowet), DXP CANADA ENTERPRISES LTD.,
corporation organized under the laws of Britishu@abia, Canada (* Canadian Borroweand together with US Borrower, the “ Borrowés
the lenders who are party to this Amendment (th@othsenting Lendery, and WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
national banking association, as administrativentif@ the Lenders (in such capacity, the “ Adntirsitve Agent’).

PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the lenders party theréie ( Lenders’) and the Administrative Agent entered into a Crédjteemer
dated as of July 11, 2012 (as amended, restateshded and restated, supplemented or otherwise imddibm time to time, the Credi

Adreement); and

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested (i) (a) anelmental Term Loan to the US Borrower in an agategrincipal amount
$37,500,000 and (b) a Revolving Credit Facilityrease in an aggregate principal amount of $37,900,h each case in accordance
Section 5.13f the Credit Agreement, and (ii) to amend the @radreement as specifically set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms of this Amendmentcértain of the Lenders party hereto and eacnéi@h institution party hereto
an “Additional Term Loan Lender” (collectively, tHelncremental Term Loan Lendef$ are severally willing to make a portion of
Incremental Term Loan, (ii) certain of the Lendpesty hereto and each financial institution partydto as anAdditional Revolving Cred
Lender” (collectively, the * Incremental Revolviriredit Lenders) are severally willing to provide a portion of thewlving Credit Facilit
Increase and (iii) the Administrative Agent and tbensenting Lenders have agreed to amend the Gkgdtement as specifically set fc
herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable considerattbe receipt and sufficiency of which is herebkramwledged, the parti
hereto hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Capitalized TermsAll capitalized terms not otherwise definedhiistAmendment (including without limitation in the
introductory paragraph and the Preliminary Statdmbareto) shall have the meanings as specifiitcitCredit Agreement.

Section 2. _Amendments to Credit Agreeme®ubject to and in accordance with the termscamdiitions set forth herein the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders party heretreby agree as follows:

(&) new definitions of “Applicable Designee,” ¥6f Amendment Effective Date” and "Incremental Tdraan Commitment” are
hereby added to Section Jofithe Credit Agreement in appropriate alphabeticder to read in its entirety as follows:

“ Applicable Designeé means any office, branch or Affiliate of a Revioly Credit Lender designated thereby from
time to time with the consent of the Administratikgent and the US Borrower (which such consentd sioa be
unreasonably withheld or delayed) to fund all oy @ortion of such Revolving Credit Lender's RevolyiCredit
Commitment with respect to any Canadian Revolvingd@ Loans under this Agreement. Each Applicdldsignee
will be subject at all times to the terms and psais of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the desfmpn by any
Revolving Credit Lender of an Applicable Designges Borrowers and the Administrative Agent shallpeemitted

to deal solely and directly with such Revolving ditd ender in connection with such Revolving Creldénder’s
rights and obligations under this Agreement, anduch designation shall relieve any such Revol@ngdit Lender
of its obligations hereunder.

“ Eirst Amendment Effective Datemeans December 31, 2012.

“ Incremental Term Loan Commitmehimeans the commitment of any Lender to make aremental Term Loan to
the Borrower in accordance with Section 5.18Bhe aggregate Incremental Term Loan Commitméatl @pplicable
Term Loan Lenders on the First Amendment EffeciDage shall be $37,500,000. The Incremental TerranLo
Commitment of each Term Loan Lender, as of thet Bimendment Effective Date, is set forth oppodite hame of
such Lender on Schedule 1.1(c)

(b)  the definition of “Canadian Swingline Sublifns hereby amended by replacing “$5,000,000” wih5,000,000".
(c) the definition of “Permitted Acquisition” isereby amended as follows:
()  clause (i) of such definition is hereby ameddby replacing “$35,000,000” with “$25,000,000fca
(i)  the proviso at the end of such definitiorhsreby amended and restated as follows:

“ provided, however, if the consideration paid for any such Acquisiti@r series of related Acquisitior




does not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Worth, ttmen US Borrower shall not be subject to the
requirements set forth in clauses (e), (f), (ijjpf

(d) the definition of “Revolving Credit Commitmigris hereby amended by replacing the last twoesgsgs of such definition with
the following two sentences:

“The aggregate Revolving Credit Commitment of b# Revolving Credit Lenders on the First Amendni&fifective
Date shall be $262,500,000. The Revolving Credim&itment of each Revolving Credit Lender, as & Hirst
Amendment Effective Date, is set forth oppositertame of such Lender on Schedule 1.1(c)

(e) the definition of “Revolving Credit CommitmeRercentageis hereby amended by replacing the last sentenseabf definitior
with the following sentence:

“The Revolving Credit Commitment Percentage of e&wvolving Credit Lender, as of the First Amendment
Effective Date, is set forth opposite the nameuzhsLender on Schedule 1.1(¢)

()  the definition of “Revolving Credit Lenders ihereby amended by adding the following sentehtteeaend of such definition:

With respect to (a) each provision of this Agreemeiating to the making or the repayment of anyh&han
Revolving Credit Loan, (b) any rights of set-off) @ny rights of indemnification or expense reingament and (d)
reserves, capital adequacy or other provisionsh eaference to a “Revolving Credit Lender” shall deemed to
include such Revolving Credit Lender’'s Applicablediynee with respect to the portion of such RewnghCredit
Lender’'s Commitment funded by such Applicable Desig

(g) the definition of “Term Loan Percentage” erdby amended by replacing such definition inisrety with the following:

“ Term Loan Percentagemeans, with respect to any Term Loan Lender gttane, the percentage of the
total outstanding principal balance of the Term n®oar Incremental Term Loans, as applicable, reptesl by the
outstanding principal balance of such Term Loan degis Term Loans or Incremental Term Loans,
respectively. The Term Loan Percentage of eacmTearan Lender as of the First Amendment EffectiaeDs set
forth opposite the name of such Lender on Schebldig).”

(h)  Section 4.3f the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by rapdasuch Section in its entirety with the following

“SECTION 4.3 Repayment of Term Loans

€) Repayments of Initial Term Loanghe US Borrower shall repay the aggregate outébg
principal amount of the Initial Term Loan in consBee quarterly installments on the last Businesy Bf each of
March, June, September and December commencingr8keet 30, 2012 as set forth below, except as tlwiats of
individual installments may be adjusted pursuar@éotion 4.hereof:

Payment Date Principal Installment
September 30, 201 $3,750,00(
December 31, 201 $3,750,00(

March 31, 201: $3,750,00(

June 30, 201 $3,750,00(
September 30 201 $3,750,00(
December 31, 201 $3,750,00(

March 31, 201« $3,750,00(

June 30, 201 $3,750,00(
September 30, 201 $5,000,00(
December 31, 201 $5,000,00(

March 31, 201! $5,000,00(

June 30, 201 $5,000,00(
September 30 201 $6,250,00(
December 31, 201 $6,250,00(

March 31, 201¢ $6,250,00(

June 30, 201 $6,250,00(
September 30, 201 $6,250,00(
December 31, 201 $6,250,00(

March 31, 201 $6,250,00(

Term Loan Maturity Dati Remaining Outstanding Principal Amot

If not sooner paid, the Initial Term Loan shall jp&d in full, together with accrued interest thereon the Term
Loan Maturity Date



(b) Repayments of Incremental Term Load$e US Borrower will repay the aggregate outditam
principal of the Incremental Term Loan in consecitquarterly installments on the last Business bagach of
March, June, September and December commencinghM&rc2013 as set forth below, except as the arsanint
individual installments may be adjusted pursuar8dotion 4.shereof:

Payment Date Principal Installment
March 31, 201: $1,406,25(
June 30, 201 $1,406,25(
September 30, 201 $1,406,25(
December 31, 201 $1,406,25(
March 31, 201« $1,406,25(
June 30, 201 $1,406,25(
September 30, 201 $1,875,00(
December 31, 201 $1,875,00(
March 31, 201! $1,875,00(
June 30, 201 $1,875,00(
September 30, 201 $2,343,75(
December 31, 201 $2,343,75(
March 31, 201¢ $2,343,75(
June 30, 201 $2,343,75(
September 30, 201 $2,343,75(
December 31, 201 $2,343,75(
March 31, 201 $2,343,75(
Remaining outstanding
Term Loan Maturity Dat principal amoun

If not sooner paid, the Incremental Term Loan shallpaid in full, together with accrued interestréon, on the
Term Loan Maturity Date.

(i) clause (A) to the proviso of Section 5.13¢ajhe Credit Agreement is hereby amended by rame$100,000,000” with
“$175,000,000".

() clauses (a) and (b) of Section 8flthe Credit Agreement are hereby amended toal#tet parenthetical “(or, if earlier, on the
date of any required public filing thereof)” in éasuch clause.

(k)  Schedule 1.1(dp the Credit Agreement is hereby replaced inntigety with Schedule 1.1(@ttached hereto.

Section 3. Incremental Increases

(&  Upon the terms and subject to the conditadnand in reliance upon the representations arrdanwtes made under this
Amendment, (i) each Incremental Term Loan Lendeeleseverally agrees (A) that it is a Term Loander under the Credit Agreement w
respect to its Incremental Term Loan Commitmend, @) to make an Incremental Term Loan in a printgmount equal to its Incremental
Term Loan Commitment to the US Borrower in a sirdjiaw on the First Amendment Effective Date andggich Incremental Revolving
Credit Lender hereby severally agrees (A) tha & Revolving Credit Lender under the Credit Agreehwith respect to its Revolving Credit
Commitment and (B) to make Revolving Credit Loamsif time to time from the First Amendment Effectate through, but not including,
the Revolving Credit Maturity Date in accordancétwvthe terms of Section 2d3 the Credit Agreement.

(b)  The Incremental Term Loan shall be subjechémdatory prepayments pursuant to Section 4gf(tile Credit Agreement
(ratably between the Term Loan and the Increméreaih Loan) with such prepayment to be applied éostheduled principal payments of the
Incremental Term Loan on_a pratabasis according to the amount of each such schegalgment.

(c)  The Incremental Term Loans shall bear intareaccordance with Section Sof the Credit Agreement at the same rate
(including Applicable Rate) as the Term Loans.

(d)  The proceeds of the Incremental Term Loamdl ble used for general corporate purposes of @&brrower and its
Subsidiaries.

(e)  Except to the extent otherwise set forth imetée terms and conditions applicable to thedneental Term Loan shall be the
same as the terms and conditions applicable td¢h@ Loans. Amounts of the Incremental Term Ldaat &re repaid or prepaid may not be
reborrowed.

(H  Each Incremental Term Loan made on the Fireendment Effective Date shall be deemed to bdmarémental Term Loan”
for all purposes of the Loan Documents. Nothinthis Amendment shall affect the amount or termghefinitial Term Loans which were
funded on the Closing Date.



Section 4. Additional Lenders and Commitments

(@ Each financial institution party hereto as‘/Additional Term Loan Lender” and/or an “Addition@evolving Credit
Lender” (each, an * Additional Lend&ragrees that effective as of the First Amendnigffeective Date, it shall (i) be a party to the Gted
Agreement and the other Loan Documents, (ii) beemtler”, a “Revolving Credit Lender” and/or “Terno&n Lender”, as applicable, for all
purposes of the Credit Agreement and the other Iisuments, (iii) perform all of the obligationsathare required to be performed by it as a
“Lender”, “Revolving Credit Lender” and/or “Term ba Lender”, as applicable, under the terms of tregli€ Agreement and shall be entitled
to the benefits, rights and remedies set fortheiihesnd in each of the other Loan Documents. Battditional Lender acknowledges that it has
made its own independent investigation and credituation of the Borrowers in connection with eirtgrinto this Amendment.

(b) Each Additional Lender confirms its respeetimcremental Term Loan Commitment and/or Revoldngdit Commitment as

set forth on Schedule 1.1(aegreto.

(c)  Effective on the First Amendment Effectivet®ahe outstanding Revolving Credit Loans and Reng Credit Commitment
Percentages of Swingline Loans and L/C Obligatisifisbe reallocated by the Administrative Agent amyadhe Revolving Credit Lenders
(including the Additional Lenders participatingtire Revolving Credit Facility Increase) in accorckamwith their revised Revolving Credit
Commitment Percentages (and such Revolving Cremitlers agree to make all payments and adjustmeoéssary to effect such reallocation
and the US Borrower shall pay any and all costaired pursuant to Section Sr®connection with such reallocation as if sucHlogation
were a repayment).

Section 5. Conditions of Effectivenes3 he effectiveness of this Amendment and thegahibn of each Additional Lender to
makes Loans on the First Amendment Effective Dagdl e subject to the satisfaction of each offtllewing conditions precedent (the date
on which all such conditions are satisfied, thersFAmendment Effective Dat®:

(a) the Administrative Agent shall have receigednterparts of this Amendment executed by eachoB@r, each other Credit
Party, the Administrative Agent, the Required Lasdée Incremental Term Loan Lenders and the imergal Revolving Credit Lenders;

(b) the Administrative Agent shall have received corpaets of Notes in favor of each applicable Len@eeach case, if request
thereby), duly executed by the applicable Borrothereto;

(c) the representations and warranties of thed®ars contained in Section 6 shall be true andectir

(d) the Administrative Agent shall have receigecertificate of a Responsible Officer of the USBwer certifying that attached
thereto is a true, correct and complete copy aflwi®ns duly adopted by the board of directorsgguivalent) of the US Borrower authorizing
and approving the transactions contemplated hesruarttl the execution, delivery and performancéisfAmendment and the other Loan
Documents executed in connection herewith to whigha party;

(e) the Administrative Agent shall have receigeckrtificate from a Financial Officer of the USrBmwer setting forth reasonably
detailed calculations demonstrating pro forma caamgle with_Section 9.18f the Credit Agreement based on the financiakstants most
recently delivered pursuant to Section 8fthe Credit Agreement after giving effect to theremental Increases made pursuant to this
Amendment (assuming that the entire IncrementahTlezan and Revolving Credit Facility Increase ibyffunded on the First Amendment
Effective Date);

(H  all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expsmscurred by the Administrative Agent in connectwith the preparation,
negotiation, execution and delivery of this Amendirend the other instruments and documents to Ineeded hereunder (including, without
limitation, the reasonable fees, charges and digloents of legal counsel for the Administrative itga connection with the preparation,
negotiation, execution and delivery of this Amendthshall have been paid by the Borrowers; and

() the US Borrower shall have paid all fees jpdgydo the Arranger pursuant to that certain engeaye letter dated as of
September 19, 2012 by and among the US Borrowettendrranger.

Section 6. Representations and Warranties odBémsowers. Each Borrower represents and warrants as follows

(@  The execution, delivery and performance lghdBorrower of its obligations in connection withist Amendment are within its
corporate (or other organizational) powers, hawnliuly authorized by all necessary corporate ffoercorganizational) action and do not and
will not (i) violate any provision of its articlew certificate of incorporation or bylaws or sinnilarganizing or governing documents of such
Borrower, (ii) contravene any Applicable Law whishapplicable to such Borrower, (iii) conflict wjtresult in a breach of or constitute (with
notice, lapse of time or both) a default under a@gerial indenture or instrument or other mateagreement to which such Borrower is a pe
by which it or any of its properties is bound omthich it is subject, or (iv) except for the Lieganted in favor of the Administrative Agent
pursuant to the Security Documents, result in quire the creation or imposition of any Lien upay af its properties or assets, except, in the
case of clauses (ii) and (iii) above, to the exterth contraventions, conflicts, breaches or defanduld not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

(b)  Such Borrower has taken all necessary cotpdoa other organizational) action to executeivéeland perform this
Amendment and has validly executed and delivereti efithis Amendment. This Amendment constitukeslégal, valid and binding
obligation of such Borrower enforceable againshdBorrower in accordance with its terms, excegh®wextent that enforceability may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganizatiomyratorium or other similar laws affecting cred#atights generally, by general equitable
principles or by principles of good faith and fde@aling.



(c)  No material consent, approval, authorizattiother action by, notice to, or registration itingy with, any Governmental
Authority or other Person is or will be requiredaasondition to or otherwise in connection with thee execution, delivery and performance b
such Borrower of this Amendment except such as baea obtained or made and are in full force afeteénd except filings necessary to
perfect Liens created under the Loan Documents.

(d)  After giving effect to this Amendment, thgresentations and warranties contained in eadhedfdan Documents are true and
correct in all material respects on and as of tite dereof as though made on and as of such dagr (ban any such representations or
warranties that, by their terms, refer to a spedféte, in which case as of such specific date).

(e) No Default or Event of Default shall exist immeeigtprior to and after giving effect to (i) this AAmdment, (ii) the Increment
Increases and (iii) any Extension of Credit madednnection herewith.

()  The aggregate amount of Indebtedness incuaneddoutstanding pursuant to Section 9.4fthe Credit Agreement, prior to and
after giving effect to the Incremental Increasedess than $25,000,000.

Section 7. Reference to and Effect on the Loaaub@ents On and after the effectiveness of this Amendmesth reference in
the Credit Agreement to “this Agreement”, “hereurigéhereof” or words of like import referring tdve Credit Agreement, and each reference
in the Notes and each of the other Loan Documerithé Credit Agreement”, “thereunder”, “thereof” words of like import referring to the
Credit Agreement, shall mean and be a referentteet@redit Agreement, as amended by this Amendamahthis Amendment shall constitute

a Loan Document.

(&) The Credit Agreement, the Notes and eacheobther Loan Documents, as specifically amendetiisyAmendment, are and
shall continue to be in full force and effect amd bereby in all respects ratified and confirm®&dithout limiting the generality of the foregoil
the Security Documents and all of the Collateralcdided therein do and shall continue to secur@#yenent of all Obligations of the Credit
Parties under the Loan Documents, in each casmesded or converted by this Amendment.

(b)  The execution, delivery and effectivenesthi® Amendment shall not, except as expressly gem’herein, operate as a waiver
of any right, power or remedy of any Lender or Augministrative Agent under any of the Loan Docunsenbr constitute a waiver of any
provision of any of the Loan Documents.

Section 8. _Acknowledgement and ReaffirmatioBach Borrower and each other Credit Party (egesgthat the transactions
contemplated by this Amendment shall not limit onidish the obligations of such Person under, rage such Person from any obligations
under, the Credit Agreement, the US Subsidiary é&ugrAgreement, the Canadian Subsidiary Guarantgémgent, the US Borrower Guara
Agreement, the US Collateral Agreement, the Cama@iallateral Agreement and each other Security Brasu to which it is a party, (b)
confirms and reaffirms its obligations under thedit Agreement, the US Subsidiary Guaranty Agredniba Canadian Subsidiary Guaranty
Agreement, the US Borrower Guaranty Agreement{X8eCollateral Agreement, the Canadian Collaterale&gent and each other Security
Document to which it is a party and (c) agrees thetCredit Agreement, the US Subsidiary GuararggeAment, the Canadian Subsidiary
Guaranty Agreement, the US Borrower Guaranty Agerenthe US Collateral Agreement, the Canadiana@ial Agreement and each other
Security Document to which it is a party remairiit force and effect and are hereby reaffirmed.

Section 9. Execution in Counterpart¥his Amendment may be executed in counterparid by different parties hereto in
different counterparts), each of which shall cdogti an original, but all of which when taken tdgetshall constitute a single
contract. Delivery of an executed counterpad sfgnature page of this Amendment by facsimile@lectronic (.e., “pdf’ or “tif”) format
shall be effective as delivery of a manually exedutounterpart of this Amendment.

Section 10. _Governing LawThis Amendment and any claim, controversy, disfu cause of action (whether in contract or ¢ort
otherwise) based upon, arising out of or relatmthis Amendment and the transactions contemplateeby and thereby shall be governed by
and construed in accordance with, the law of tlaéeSif New York.

Section 11. Entire AgreementThis Amendment and the other Loan Documents aawydseparate letter agreements with respect
fees payable to the Administrative Agent, the Isguiender, the Swingline Lender and/or the Arrangenstitute the entire agreement among
the parties relating to the subject matter heradfsupersede any and all previous agreements afetatandings, oral or written, relating to the
subject matter hereof.

[Signature Pages Follow]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caubsdAmendment to be executed by their respectffieens thereunto du
authorized, as of the date first above written.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., as US Borrower

By: /s/Mac McConnell

Name: Mac McConnell

Title:  Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Secretary

DXP CANADA ENTERPRISES LTD. , as Canadian Borrower

By: /s/Mac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Chief Financial Officer

DXP HOLDINGS, INC. , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By:  /s/Mac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Vice President

PMI OPERATING COMPANY, LTD. , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor
By: PUMP-PMI, LLC, as General Partner
By: _/s/Mac McConnell

Name: Mac McConnell
Title:  Secretary and Treasurer

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




PMI INVESTMENT, LLC , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Secretary and Treasurer

PUMP-PMI, LLC , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Secretary and Treasurer

VERTEX CORPORATE HOLDINGS, INC. , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Vice President, Secretary andabrger

VERTEX-PFI, INC. , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Vice President, Secretary amdaBurer

PFI, LLC , as a US Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Vice President and Secretary

INDUSTRIAL PARAMEDIC SERVICES LTD. , as a Canadian Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /s/Mac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Director

HSE INTEGRATED LTD. , as a Canadian Subsidiary Guarantor

By: /sIMac McConnell
Name: Mac McConnell
Title: Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT AND LENDERS

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Administrative Agent, Swingline Lender, Issulrender and Lender

By: /s/Thomas F. Caver, llI
Name: Thomas F. Caver, Il
Title:  Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Pag




REGIONS BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/Larry C. Stephens

Name: Larry C. Stephens
Title:  Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Pag




BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Gary L. Mingle

Name: Gary L. Mingle
Title:  Senior Vice President

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. (CANADA BRANCH),

as its Applicable Designee

By: /s/Medina Sales de Andrade

Name: Medina Sales de Andrade
Title:  Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY, as a Lender

By: /s/Matt McCain
Name: Matt McCain
Title:  Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




ROYAL BANK OF CANADA, as a Lender

By: /s/Karen Pitz

Name: Karen Pitz
Title:  Director, Energy Services

By: /s/Roger Straathof

Name: Roger Straathof
Title:  Vice President, Commercial Financial Seeg

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/Seth Laroche
Name: Seth Laroche
Title: Officer

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., TORONTO BRANCH, as itplicable Designee
By: /s/Michael N. Tam

Name: Michael N. Tam
Title: Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




BOKF, NA dba Bank of Texas, as a Lender

By: /s/Marian Livingston

Name: Marian Livingston
Title: Senior Vice President

DXP Enterprises, Inc.
First Amendment to the Credit Agreement
and Incremental Increase Agreement
Signature Page




Schedule 1.1(c)

Commitments and Commitment Percentages

Term Loan
Percentage for

Revolving Credit Incremental Incremental

Revolving Credit Commitment Term Loan Term Loans

Commitment as Percentage as o Term Loan Commitment on Made on the

of the First the First Initial Term Percentage for the First First

Amendment Amendment Loan Initial Term Amendment Amendment

Lender Effective Date  Effective Date  Commitment Loans Effective Date Effective Date

Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

$77,692,308.00 29.597069714% $32,307,692.00

32.307692000%

$5,000,000.00

13.333333333%

Regions Banl

$45,000,000.0  17.142857142% $20,000,000.01

20.000000000%

$0.00

0.000000000%

Bank of America, N.A

$50,000,000.00  19.047619048% $20,000,000.0

20.000000000%

$5,000,000.0¢

13.3333333339

Branch Banking and Trust

$33,653,846.00 12.820512762% $13,846,154.00

by 13.846154000% $2,500,000.00 6.666666667%
X;zbggggrumonal $31,153,846.00 11.868131809% $13,846,154.00 13.846154000% $0.00 0.000000000%
Royal Bank of Canad $10,000,000.0 _3.8095238107 $0.00 0.000000000% _ $10,000,000.0! 26.6666666679
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. _ $10,000,000.0 _3.8095238109 $0.00 0.000000000% _ $10,000,000.0! 26.6666666679
ggﬁg2:¥zg;a $5,000,000.00 1.904761905% $0.00 0.000000000%  $5,000,000.00 13.333333333%
Total $262,500,000.0 100.000000000% $100,000,000.0 100.000000000%

$37,500,000.01 100.000000000¢

42638321 _7










Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
PMI Operating Company, Ltd., a Texas limited parshe
PMI Investment, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilitypiporation
Pump — PMI LLC, a Texas limited liability corporaiti
Vertex Corporate Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corfiora
Pawtucket Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
PFI, LLC, a Rhode Island limited liability company
DXP Energy Services, LLC, a Texas limited liabildgrporation
DXP Canada Enterprises, Ltd., a British Columbiapdaation
HSE Integrated, Ltd,, an Alberta Corporation

Industrial Paramedic Services, Ltd., and AlbertapBoation










Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation of our respdated March 11, 2013 relating to our audit & tonsolidated financial statements,
financial statement schedule and internal contuar dinancial reporting included in this Annual Repon Form 10-K, into the Compary’
previously filed registration statements on Forr@ @-ile Nos. 333-134606, 333-123698, 333-61953;@3375 and 333-92877) and Forn8S-
(File No. 333-134603).

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2013










Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, David R. Little, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f), for the registrant and ha\

€) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of ttgisteant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémthis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contaold procedures, as of the end of the period covieyethis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changettie registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegyistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and m@& weaknesses in the design or operation of falecontrol over financial reporti
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiaaincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiddat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 11, 2013

/s/ David R. Little

David R. Little

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)










Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Mac McConnell, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitiieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f), for the registrant and ha\

€) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgateant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgmted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changettie registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegyistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and m@& weaknesses in the design or operation of falecontrol over financial reporti
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiaaincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiddat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 11, 2013

/s] Mac McConnell

Mac McConnell

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)













Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkes Act of 2002, as amended.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added hyo8e306 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifileat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL@sr the year ended December 31, 2012
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtaored in the Report fairly presents, in all materespects, the financial condition
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 11, 2013

/s/David R. Little
David R. Little
President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notdgoéiled as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.













Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@arkes Act of 2002, as amended

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added byo8e306 of the Sarban&3xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifileat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL@sr the year ended December 31, 2012
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtaored in the Report fairly presents, in all materespects, the financial condition
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 11, 2013
/s/IMac McConnell

Mac McConnell
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is nat¢péiled as part of the Report or a
separate disclosure document.







